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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good morning.

          3  I'm Madeline Provenzano, and I chair the Committee

          4  on Housing and Buildings. Welcome. It's kind of

          5  strange because you're all -- sorry, I kind of

          6  jumped up and down and made a lot of noise, but it

          7  didn't matter, they still didn't change the chairs

          8  in the Chambers. So, I apologize.

          9                 Today we're conducting our first

         10  hearing on Intro. No. 189. It's a new piece of

         11  legislation. The Pet bill is a new piece of

         12  legislation. It has a new number, so it's basically

         13  like starting all over.

         14                 This is a local law to amend the

         15  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         16  relation to clarifying the rights of pet owners in

         17  multiple dwellings.

         18                 It's introduced by Council Member

         19  Melinda Katz during this session.

         20                 The bill would amend Section

         21  27-2009.1 of the Administrative Code of the City of

         22  New York. It clarifies the rights of Pet owners in

         23  multiple dwellings such that when a no pet provision

         24  in a tenant's lease is waived. It is waived for the

         25  duration of the tenants occupancy, and not just the
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          2  life of the pet.

          3                 Section 27-2009.1 of the

          4  Administrative Code, was enacted by Local Law 52 of

          5  the Year 1983, it provides that when a tenant in a

          6  multiple dwelling harbors or has harbored a

          7  household pet or pets openly and notoriously for a

          8  period of three months or more after taking

          9  possession of a dwelling unit, and the owner or his

         10  or her agent has knowledge of this fact, and fails

         11  within that three-month period to commence a summary

         12  proceeding for action to enforce a lease provision

         13  prohibiting the keeping of such pets, then such

         14  lease provision shall be deemed waived.

         15                 Supporters of Intro. No. 189 believe

         16  this legislation is necessary to clarify the rights

         17  of pet owners due to inconsistent court

         18  interpretations of Local Law 52.

         19                 The issue of concern is whether a

         20  no-pet clause can be revived in the future after it

         21  has been waived. The current law provides no

         22  explicit provision for the revival or resumption of

         23  a no pet clause once it is waived.

         24                 Intro. No. 189 would clarify that

         25  once a "no pet provision" in the tenants lease is
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          2  waived, it is waived for the duration of the

          3  tenant's occupancy.

          4                 However, tenants whose pets cause

          5  damage, create a nuisance or substantially interfere

          6  with the health, safety or welfare of other

          7  occupants, are not protected under the current law,

          8  or Intro. No. 189.

          9                 It should be noted that the

         10  provisions of the current law and the bill do not

         11  apply to the New York City Housing Authority.

         12                 Those of you wishing to testify, you

         13  must sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms, and this

         14  hearing will end at 1:00 because there is another

         15  hearing in this room.

         16                 We will have the three-minute clock

         17  on for everyone that testifies.

         18                 And at some point I will be

         19  interrupting the proceedings because we have to vote

         20  on another piece of legislation.

         21                 Okay, first folks we're calling up,

         22  Peter and Mary Max, are you back there some place?

         23                 Oh, excuse me. I'm sorry. We'll let

         24  the sponsor of the bill -- I'm sorry, Melinda. Since

         25  you and I are the only ones here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good morning,

          3  everyone. And I want to thank the Chairwoman of the

          4  Housing and Buildings Committee for having this

          5  hearing again.

          6                 I just want to clarify just a few

          7  things. Many of you have been in contact with our

          8  offices, all of the Council members, which I urge

          9  you to continue to do, to be in contact with the

         10  Council members' offices and the staff. And I do

         11  appreciate all of the work that many of you have

         12  done, in order to make it to this second hearing.

         13                 But just to clarify a few things: We

         14  are talking today about a piece of legislation that

         15  basically redefines what waiving means. Before this

         16  legislation is passed right now, if one waives the

         17  right to eviction, it goes along with the pet, the

         18  pet that is alive and the pet that is living in the

         19  apartment.

         20                 Basically we are trying to change the

         21  definition of what "waived" means. I feel, and some

         22  of the Council members, and most of you in this room

         23  feel that once a landlord waives his right to bring

         24  an eviction proceeding based on a pet, it is waived

         25  even if that pet dies and they get another pet. And
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          2  that is basically all that this hearing is.

          3                 Please make no mistake about it, for

          4  everyone who has opposed this bill, and also to

          5  clarify for some other folks the controversy

          6  surrounding this bill, we are not rewriting the

          7  original piece of legislation.

          8                 A lot of the controversy that

          9  surrounds this is because people don't, you know,

         10  groups don't like the original piece of legislation.

         11  And I get that. And a lot of the advocates get that.

         12  What we are trying to do is basically just change

         13  the definition of waived for future use of this

         14  legislation.

         15                 If we are going to go back and change

         16  the original, then that is something that we can

         17  discuss, but that's not on the table today.

         18                 I would like to thank the advocates,

         19  you guys have been great in making sure that the

         20  message comes out, Peter and Mary Max, Chima

         21  Clenahan (phonetic), the Humane Society and everyone

         22  who has worked so hard, and we do understand how

         23  important this legislation is. That is why we are

         24  here. That is why we have negotiated so hard and for

         25  so long, to try to get a piece of legislation that
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          2  will actually become law and help so many of the

          3  folks out there that know the pets are part of

          4  someone's home, pets become part of their family,

          5  and pets can also be used as weapons sometimes in

          6  order to create controversy in an apartment

          7  building. We're just trying to make sure that that

          8  doesn't happen.

          9                 And, again, I want to thank the

         10  Chairwoman of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         11  This bill has taken up a lot of her time, and we do

         12  appreciate the work that she has done in order to

         13  get us here. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         15  Councilwoman Katz.

         16                 Peter and Mary, do you want to come

         17  forward? Where is Paul? We have Peter and Mary.

         18                 We're going to have you sit over

         19  here. It's a little unorthodox today.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Those are

         21  Council Members' chairs. You may want to try it out,

         22  see how it feels.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And then

         24  decide this isn't the way to go.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Decide not to
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          2  run.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Will you both

          4  be speaking? You're going to let her speak. Just

          5  identify yourself before you speak.

          6                 MS. MAX: Hi. My name is Mary Max.

          7                 Thank you, Councilwoman Provenzano,

          8  for having this hearing. And thank you, Councilwoman

          9  Katz for your work, just seeing this bill through

         10  and through. And thank you, everybody, who has come

         11  in support of the bill.

         12                 I'm here because -- well, because I

         13  support the bill, but as an animal advocate I have

         14  taken this bill on and have generated all of the

         15  phone calls to your offices. What I want to say most

         16  today is that this is more than a cat and dog bill.

         17  This is really a people bill. No cat and dog is

         18  e-mailing me, faxing me and calling me.

         19                 I have, well, a lot of people. I

         20  don't know if it's several hundred, but I am

         21  inundated with e-mails, calls and faxes from people

         22  who are in a lot of pain, who are suffering because

         23  they can't adopt an animal. It's a way of life in

         24  New York, it's a comfort for these people. It sounds

         25  so pat, but these animals are really part of these
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          2  people's lives, and sometimes I think people are

          3  like, ahh, you know, it's just a cat and dog bill,

          4  like who cares? I wish the Council could really hear

          5  what these people are going through, and then I

          6  think they would just vote yes immediately. And I

          7  have 11,000 petition signatures here from people all

          8  around the City in support of this bill, and I could

          9  have collected more, but I just stopped at a certain

         10  point, but that could probably double easily.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12  Thank you very much.

         13                 At this time we don't have too many

         14  Council members here. We had a late night last

         15  night, so they all moaned and groaned about being

         16  here at 10:00, but I'm sure the members of the

         17  Committee will be dribbling in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mary, just to

         19  sort of put it on the record, you and I have had a

         20  lot of discussions, you are a pet advocate or animal

         21  advocate I know on many, many different levels, and

         22  I understand fully that this is a people bill and I

         23  think that that is probably the most important

         24  aspect of this.

         25                 Can you just very, very briefly
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          2  discuss the effects, though, on pets and the fact is

          3  that there is a lot of killing of dogs and cats who

          4  cannot be adopted and the effect you think this bill

          5  would have on that?

          6                 MS. MAX: Well, if there are more

          7  people that can adopt more animals, then we're going

          8  to be getting those animals out of all their various

          9  shelters, so the euthanasia rates will go down and

         10  there's also less of an expense to the City if

         11  you're looking at animal care and control, because

         12  that's paid for via taxpayer dollars to kill all of

         13  these animals.

         14                 So...

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just wanted to

         16  put on the record that in a lot of our districts, we

         17  have a lot of stray cats, a lot of stray dogs, and

         18  everyone is always trying to ask us to get rid of

         19  them or do something with them, and I think that

         20  this is an important piece of legislation to move

         21  that forward.

         22                 Can you also, just quickly, because I

         23  know that this is the second hearing, put on the

         24  record again some of the advocates that have been

         25  involved in the fight with you?
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          2                 MS. MAX: The people that I'm dealing

          3  with?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: People and

          5  advocates.

          6                 MS. MAX: Well, the people are -- oh,

          7  gosh the list is so long, but what comes to my mind

          8  is Janet and Gary Weintraub, and now they're in a

          9  situation in which they had a dog, their beloved

         10  "Chester" for 17 years, 18 years? Seventeen years,

         11  who just died, and they're longing for another

         12  animal because they were never able to have children

         13  and they're in a building now which is enforcing the

         14  "no pet clause."

         15                 Fernwood Mitchell, and I hope that

         16  I'm not saying anything that he hasn't said himself,

         17  he has dealt with depression his whole life, and he

         18  attributes getting out, meeting people, having a

         19  better frame of mind, to the dogs that he rescued.

         20  And he's also in a building in which once his dogs

         21  pass away they've said you can't get another one.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it's

         23  basically safe to say that most of the folks that

         24  contact you, a lot of the folks that contact you,

         25  are people that are personally affected by this
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          2  piece of legislation and will be benefitted by it?

          3                 MS. MAX: Without a doubt.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          5                 MS. MAX: Okay. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          7  very much. We've been joined by Council Member

          8  Rivera.

          9                 Elinor Molbegott, Gary Kaskel, and

         10  Laura Imperiale. Please take seats here.

         11                 If there are people here who have

         12  called to testify, you must also sign in. Although

         13  we may have your name on the list because you

         14  called, you still have to sign in in order to

         15  testify today.

         16                 Whoever wants to start, just remember

         17  to identify yourself. We have four people there, I

         18  called three people.

         19                 MR. MOLBEGOTT: My name is Elinor

         20  Molbegott. I'm an attorney with the Humane Society.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Susan

         22  Richmond?

         23                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: This is Susan

         24  Richmond, the Executive Director. I thought she

         25  would sit by me in the event you had any specific
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          2  questions about the Humane Society Shelter and

          3  policies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well, first I want to

          6  thank the Council Housing Committee for having this

          7  hearing again.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Excuse me.

          9                 Can I ask the Sergeant-At-Arms, who

         10  ever does it, to turn up their microphone. It's a

         11  little difficult for me to hear.

         12                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Is this better? I want

         13  to thank the Housing Committee for having this

         14  hearing once again on legislation to expand the

         15  rights of tenants to have pets. And I use the word

         16  expand loosely, because what this legislation does

         17  is restore the rights of tenants to have pets. This

         18  legislation, the existing law was passed in 1983.

         19  When that law was passed, it was made quite clear by

         20  the sponsor himself, Thomas Manton, and he has made

         21  that clear since, in affidavits that I have

         22  submitted to this Committee, that the intent of the

         23  law was to provide a one-time waiver for landlords.

         24  So, that if a tenant kept a pet openly with the

         25  knowledge of the landlord or landlord's agent for
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          2  three months or more, and within that time the

          3  landlord did not commence a legal proceeding to

          4  enforce the no pet clause, that no pet clause was

          5  deemed waived, and what that meant was, it could not

          6  be enforced again against that tenant, no matter how

          7  many pets that tenant in the future acquired.

          8                 And from 1983 until 1996, that's

          9  exactly how the court interpreted the law.

         10                 We're here today because of a very

         11  unfortunate decision by the Appellate Court in 1996,

         12  and that's when the Court, after 13 years, did a

         13  turnaround and said we're going to interpret the law

         14  differently. We're going to say that the waiver runs

         15  with the pet, not with the lease, not with the

         16  apartment, not with the tenant. And as a result it's

         17  created such hardship that I can't even begin to

         18  explain to you, because I speak to hundreds of

         19  tenants a year, and not only are they suffering

         20  because they are being threatened with eviction,

         21  which anyone could imagine would be a very difficult

         22  situation to be in, but they're suffering because

         23  they are now in a position of having to choose

         24  between their apartments or their pets, and they

         25  never in a million years thought they were going to
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          2  be in that position, because they had had pets

          3  before. And the average person doesn't keep up with

          4  the Appellate Court decisions. And this turnaround

          5  has caused such confusion that from 1996 until today

          6  the majority of people still don't know about the

          7  Emike Decision (phonetic), and they feel that if

          8  their pet dies and they get another one, that

          9  they've had a pet in the apartment for years, that

         10  they can have a pet.

         11                 So, what this bill does, it's a very

         12  modest bill, it restores the rights the tenant has

         13  since 1983 to 1996. And in doing so it will enhance

         14  the lives of thousands, of millions of people, I'll

         15  just finish up, as well as save the lives of

         16  thousands of animals. So, we really encourage you to

         17  do your part and protect the tenants, the animals,

         18  those people who have pets now and want to get a new

         19  one in the future, and those who have had one in the

         20  past, but because of the Emike Decision, haven't had

         21  a pet for years, but want to acquire one and there

         22  was a waiver in their apartment at some point in

         23  time when they lived there.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  We'll just go down the line and then we'll take

          3  questions.

          4                 We've also been joined by

          5  Councilwoman Latitia James. If you're off, you're

          6  on.

          7                 MS. IMPERIALE: I think I'm on now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          9                 MS. IMPERIALE: Good morning. My name

         10  is Laura Imperiale, and I work for the Fund for

         11  Animals, an animal protection organization. And I've

         12  been working on this bill particularly for the past,

         13  I would say seven months, since 2003. And I'm here

         14  today to provide testimony and to enter into the

         15  record some statistics about pet ownership, and the

         16  numbers, and asking, of course, for your support.

         17                 So, I'll start by, for millions of

         18  New Yorkers who consider their pets part of the

         19  family and depend on them for companionship, and

         20  especially the elderly, this bill is very valuable

         21  to them.

         22                 In addition to the toll on humans,

         23  New York joins the rest of the country in an

         24  over-populated animal shelter crisis. So, there's a

         25  hardship if this bill is not passed.
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          2                 Over ten- to twelve-thousand

          3  adoptable animals are destroyed in New York City

          4  shelters every year, while many of these cats and

          5  dogs' lives could be spared if there were more homes

          6  available to them.

          7                 The New York City Department of

          8  Planning's recent census data lists the City of New

          9  York's human population and 7.3 million with an

         10  estimated 2 million pets and more than two-thirds of

         11  the City's residents living in multiple family

         12  dwellings.

         13                 Based upon these statistics, it's

         14  easy to see that Intro. No. 389 will have a huge

         15  impact on the quality of lives in New York City.

         16                 Federal law also grants tenants in

         17  public housing the right to pet ownership. And I

         18  think it is reasonable to ask for similar

         19  protections for tenants in multiple dwellings in New

         20  York City.

         21                 According to the Pet Food Institute

         22  incident trend setting in 2000, in the Year of 2000

         23  there were over 74 million pet cats and 59 million

         24  pet dogs nationwide.

         25                 The percentage of cat-owning
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          2  households has reached a record high with over 34

          3  percent having at least one cat. The percentage of

          4  households owning dogs is approximately 37 percent,

          5  and many households provide homes to both.

          6                 On average, 40,000 cats and dogs are

          7  euthanized at New York City shelters each year. Many

          8  because there are not enough homes made available to

          9  them.

         10                 If New York City is truly committed

         11  to becoming a no-kill City by the Year 2008, then

         12  Intro. No. 380 is invaluable to animal shelters

         13  across the City in boosting their adoption rates.

         14                 In addition to support for many

         15  advocates, tenants and organizations, I would just

         16  like to add that Council Member Melinda Katz has

         17  received broad-based support from her colleagues on

         18  the Council, representing all five boroughs in New

         19  York City in support of Intro. 189.

         20                 Therefore, I urge as members of the

         21  New York City Council Housing and Buildings

         22  Committee, to pass this bill, and not only are your

         23  constituents, but hundreds of thousands of

         24  pet-owning residents of New York City are counting

         25  on your support to make the bill become law.
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          2                 In the past, Intro. No. 189 will

          3  represent a huge victory for tenants and their pets

          4  as well.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 MR. KASKEL: Good morning. I'm Gary

          9  Kaskel, the president of United Action for Animals.

         10  We have had an office in Manhattan since 1967. I've

         11  been running the group for almost two years, and I

         12  can tell you that every week we get at least a

         13  couple of calls from people who have tenancy

         14  problems because of their pets. We have to refer

         15  them to lawyers, we have hired lawyers for people at

         16  times, and it is a serious real problem.

         17                 And by the way, I was born and raised

         18  in Manhattan. I have lived in renting housing my

         19  entire life, and I can tell you that the reason

         20  we're here today is because of landlords and their

         21  greed.

         22                 This is about landlords trying to get

         23  people unfairly, using the system out of their

         24  apartments so that they can raise rents. That's all

         25  this is really about, and you know it and I know it.
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          2                 Using peoples pets as a wedge to

          3  evict people so that they can get vacancy increases,

          4  is a compelling economic factor for landlords and

          5  they take advantage of that and they do it unfairly,

          6  and they do it in bad faith.

          7                 Unfair co-op rules, and people who

          8  squabble on co-op boards who use pets as a leverage

          9  to harass their neighbors, do it unfairly.

         10                 This City needs to have a level

         11  playing field for people who want to have pets, pure

         12  and simple. This is not an issue about dangerous

         13  dogs or dangerous pets or insurance, or any other

         14  issue. This is about the people who live in

         15  apartments lawfully with pets, and their rights.

         16                 This bill was introduced several

         17  years ago, it's gone through several iterations, and

         18  it's time to get on with it and pass this bill.

         19  There are people who have problems every single day.

         20  If you allow this City to become populated by

         21  landlords who cannot offer affordable pet-friendly

         22  housing, you're going to drive people out of this

         23  City. People are not going to come into this City to

         24  live if they can't find affordable pet-friendly

         25  housing, and basically that damages the local
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          2  economy.

          3                 If you think terrorism is a threat in

          4  New York, believe me, there won't be anybody left in

          5  the City to terrorize if they can't move in here and

          6  find some place to live.

          7                 So, I urge you to please pass this

          8  bill without any further delay. I think it is a

          9  common sense bill, it is a win/win situation for

         10  everybody.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would ask

         12  that you please -- you're taking time away from the

         13  folks that are testifying if you applaud.

         14                 Remember that I did say this meeting

         15  only goes til 1:00. So, you know, at some point you

         16  could do like a really big hoorah, but as people are

         17  testifying, let's just let them testify and move on.

         18                 We have also been joined by

         19  Councilwoman Diana Reyna. And something funny is

         20  going on with these mics today. And I would just

         21  give an off-side suggestion to my Committee members

         22  that we do have a vote, so if you could -- we have

         23  Tony Avella we're bringing over, so if you could

         24  stay put, we'll be voting. Not on this bill, folks.

         25  We have another piece of legislation we have to vote
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          2  out of Committee today, and so when we get enough

          3  members here, we'll just take a few minutes and do

          4  that vote and then go back to testifying.

          5                 Do we have anybody that has

          6  questions?

          7                 Okay, Council Member Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I want to thank

          9  the panel for coming in. You have all been terrific

         10  at answering a lot of the legal questions, on

         11  statistical questions that I have had, as I know

         12  many of my colleagues have had.

         13                 I want to put on the record some

         14  information, though. One of the biggest arguments

         15  that we've gotten from folks that oppose this bill,

         16  have been, you know, the sheer numbers of people

         17  this would affect, and that it might be overwhelming

         18  to the buildings, the landlords, management

         19  companies, the co-ops, all that kind of stuff.

         20                 My argument has been that the number

         21  of people that this really affects might be a lot

         22  smaller than they think, but the people it affects

         23  really feel passionately about that, and it's a

         24  legal right that I believe they've earned by the

         25  landlord waiving the provision in the lease.
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          2                 So, I'd like to get a realistic

          3  number from you, as to how many folks really call

          4  that are getting evicted by management companies or

          5  landlords, how many people you think this really

          6  affects per year.

          7                 Even though I understand that each

          8  person it affects is very, you know, damaging to

          9  them, if it doesn't come through, I would like to

         10  get a realistic sense of the numbers.

         11                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well, it's very hard

         12  to give you a realistic number because I could only

         13  speak for the number of people who contact me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         15                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: But that's a very

         16  small percentage of the number of people out there.

         17  And we don't know how many people out there would

         18  have chosen to adopt, but don't because of fear of

         19  eviction. We don't know how many people are being

         20  threatened with the eviction and give a pet away,

         21  abandon a pet, because we don't hear from all of

         22  these people.

         23                 So, we really can't give you a

         24  number. I can only tell you the magnitude is

         25  substantial, and the hardship is substantial, and it
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          2  dates back to 1996, and it's hard to numbers, except

          3  that from 1993 to 1996, when the law was in effect,

          4  as we want it to be again, there weren't any great

          5  problems in the City.

          6                 It wasn't as if there was so much

          7  complaining by other tenants or what have you.

          8  Everything seemed to be just fine, and to go back to

          9  1996, we'll be going back to a time when people had

         10  their rights, the landlords had their rights under

         11  the Nuisance Law, and still have their rights not to

         12  allow pets if the person didn't have a pet before.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, let me try

         14  it the other way then.

         15                 During the time period where this law

         16  was interpreted the way most of us believe it should

         17  have been interpreted, I assume that if people were

         18  getting sued by either fellow tenants because of the

         19  nuisance of the animals, the pets, or by landlords

         20  being evicted because of the pets, some of you would

         21  have been involved at the defense of those tenants.

         22  And I'm assuming from your statement that there

         23  wasn't all that many lawsuits brought at the time.

         24                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well Darryl Vernon is

         25  here today, and he's an attorney that I refer a lot
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          2  of cases to and he handles a lot of these cases and

          3  he could probably speak better to that issue.

          4                 What I found from 1983 to 1996, I got

          5  a lot of phone calls, but I was able to tell those

          6  people, yes, you'll win your case. Now I have to

          7  tell the people you'll lose your case. That's the

          8  difference. It's not always that the landlords

          9  didn't write them threatening letters, it was that

         10  then they were winning and now they are losing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

         12  James.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: First let me

         14  apologize for being late this morning, but I just

         15  want to make sure that I have a full understanding

         16  of the law that is being proposed, and so I'm just

         17  going to recite my understanding of it and if I'm

         18  wrong, please correct me.

         19                 My understanding is that the law that

         20  you're proposing basically clarifies existing court

         21  decisions, and basically what it does is provide,

         22  individuals, landlords have basically been using

         23  this no pet clause as a ruse, as a subterfuge to

         24  evict individuals in a tight, affordable housing

         25  market; is that correct?
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          2                 MR. KASKEL: I believe so, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. And by

          4  passing this law, we would be clarifying the court

          5  decisions which have interpreted them as interpreted

          6  as no pet clause, and as applying to individuals

          7  whose pets have died and who now get another pet,

          8  correct?

          9                 MR. KASKEL: Yes.

         10                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And, so,

         12  basically individuals are now in a position of being

         13  pitted against possessing an animal versus being

         14  dispossessed themselves, correct?

         15                 MR. KASKEL: Correct.

         16                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. And we

         18  have a very, very tight affordable housing market,

         19  and the amount of units throughout the City of New

         20  York is very minuscule; is that correct?

         21                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Correct.

         22                 MR. KASKEL: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I support

         24  the legislation.

         25                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Rivera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

          6  much, Madam Chair.

          7                 I would like to also add my support

          8  to this piece of legislation.

          9                 I'm looking at proposed legislation,

         10  all it does is, you know, to clarify the original

         11  piece of legislation to ensure that tenants actually

         12  have the right to continue the ownership of a pet,

         13  which I feel, quite honestly, after having a pet for

         14  so many years, or as I've seen a letter over here

         15  from a 58-year-old woman, you know, I think that

         16  sometimes dogs, cats, pets, become kind of part of

         17  the family, and it becomes kind of difficult after

         18  the loss of a pet, you know, just like the loss of

         19  any other type of loved one, you know, to move on,

         20  and therefore I think that it is incumbent upon this

         21  Committee and incumbent upon the Council to move

         22  forward on this piece of legislation to ensure that

         23  the thousands and millions of New Yorkers, that, you

         24  know, would love to own a pet, would love to ensure

         25  that they can have, you know, someone or something
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          2  to enjoy their life with, can actually have the

          3  opportunity to do so.

          4                 So, Madam Chair, I would like to add

          5  my name to this particular piece of legislation, and

          6  I commend us for having a hearing, and I commend

          7  everyone for being here today.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Thank you, Council

         10  member.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 Councilwoman Katz has another

         13  question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just because you

         15  might have heard a lot about this, the federal

         16  legislation, as you know, and the reason this bill

         17  doesn't apply to the federal housing -- well,

         18  there's a few folds why it doesn't, but in general

         19  they have their own law. Their law discusses the

         20  size of the pet, and that the replacement pet should

         21  be the same size.

         22                 I'm wondering whether you have

         23  comments on that, whether you think that's a helpful

         24  piece and not a helpful piece.

         25                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Well, I do have a
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          2  comment on that.

          3                 First of all, the federal legislation

          4  goes, in many respects, much farther than this

          5  legislation. The federal legislation allows people

          6  to have pets in public housing. There's no waiver

          7  issue, they can have a pet and the landlord can't do

          8  anything about it.

          9                 What they did as a compromise for

         10  that blanket approval is they gave the various

         11  housing authorities the right to promulgate rules on

         12  size.

         13                 I have a problem -- well, I like the

         14  first part of the federal legislation, because I do

         15  think if an animal doesn't create a nuisance, people

         16  should be able to have pets, period. That's not

         17  where we are here. We already have a compromised

         18  bill that provides -- it's a waiver bill.

         19                 Once we have a waiver bill, I think

         20  we're dealing with a different situation, and I also

         21  think we're dealing with a situation where you can't

         22  discriminate against a dog because the dog happens

         23  to be bigger.

         24                 You know, people have called me who

         25  live on public housing, and the dog gained a few
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          2  pounds, and now they're being threatened with

          3  eviction, or they got a puppy that they didn't

          4  realize was going to be as big as the puppy ended up

          5  being, and suddenly they said when they got the dog,

          6  the dog was eight pounds and now the dog is 60

          7  pounds, the dog hasn't created any problem but now

          8  they're going to be evicted.

          9                 So, I think you have to look at the

         10  existing pet law in the City which provides for the

         11  waiver. It provides landlords with the opportunity

         12  to evict people based on nuisance, and a nuisance

         13  could be, just as a parent with a small dog as with

         14  a large dog.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, that was

         16  really, and I'm trying to help you here, the answer

         17  to the question really is that a poodle, a very

         18  small poodle, could be as disruptive or not

         19  disruptive as a Gray Hound?

         20                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Absolutely. And I have

         21  a German Shepherd who is much quieter than my

         22  neighbor's Maltese, so...

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 MR. KASKEL: And I'd like to add that

         25  the attempt to define what weight of an animal is
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          2  safe or unsafe or desirable or undesirable is simply

          3  preposterous. There is no way that you can establish

          4  a true guideline that means anything. It's an

          5  arbitrary and capricious decision, and the federal

          6  government, and certainly I would oppose it in local

          7  legislation.

          8                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: And it would be

          9  condemning thousands of larger dogs to death at the

         10  City shelters for no reason.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 MS. MOLBEGOTT: Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We're going

         15  to do a little business now.

         16                 (Applause.)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:

         18                 Please.

         19                 The Committee today is also

         20  considering the latest version of proposed Intro.

         21  No. 272-A. It's a local law to amend the

         22  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         23  relation to awnings.

         24                 This Intro would reestablish and

         25  extend the moratorium on the enforcement of awnings
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          2  that exist in violation of the zoning resolution.

          3  The previous moratorium ran from July 14th, 2003,

          4  through January 14th, 2004. During this moratorium

          5  time period, the Commissioner of Buildings is

          6  charged with developing a program to educate the

          7  public regarding any amendments or changes to the

          8  zoning resolution that will be adopted concerning

          9  the regulation of awnings.

         10                 The previous version of proposed

         11  Intro Number 272-A, that was the subject of the

         12  hearing before this Committee on March 29th, 2004,

         13  provided that the moratorium would run through July

         14  14th, 2006, or the date that the educational program

         15  concluded, if that date was later than July 14th,

         16  2006.

         17                 The present version of the bill that

         18  is before this Committee is dated June 10th, 2004,

         19  at 3:45 p.m., and provides that the moratorium will

         20  run from January 14th, 2004, to July 14th, 2005, or

         21  if necessary, until the date that the educational

         22  program developed by the Commissioner of Buildings

         23  concludes, which date can be no later than November

         24  30th, 2005.

         25                 We will now call the vote on proposed
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          2  Intro. No. 272-A.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Avella.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: James.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: May I be

         15  excused to explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: We are

         18  extending a moratorium in response to a ticket blitz

         19  that occurred in Manhattan, and during the period of

         20  a moratorium the Department of Buildings was charged

         21  with the responsibility of doing a study to

         22  determine whether or not regulations could be

         23  modified.

         24                 The Department of Buildings failed to

         25  modify the zoning regulations and we are now being
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          2  asked to extend the moratorium so that they can do

          3  the work that they were originally charged to do

          4  because they failed to do it.

          5                 I am in a district where we are

          6  undergoing commercial revitalization on a number of

          7  commercial strips in Brooklyn, and, so, I oppose

          8  this legislation because the Department of Buildings

          9  should have modified the regulations in the period

         10  within which they were originally charged, and

         11  having failed to, I do not believe that they should

         12  be given additional time.

         13                 In addition to that, I want to add

         14  that in the absence of enforcement, individuals and

         15  businesses will continue to put up awnings which are

         16  not in compliance, and what some of the commercial

         17  strips in my district are attempting to do is

         18  provide uniformity throughout the district. And, so,

         19  with that I unfortunately have to vote against this

         20  legislation. I vote no.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         22  Member James, I totally understand your vote, but I

         23  just want to say it's City Planning, it's not the

         24  Department of Buildings, that's going to be doing

         25  it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We'll hold

          3  the vote open because hopefully there will be other

          4  members coming in.

          5                 Mary Ann Rothman. Are you here?

          6                 Ed Yaker and Nick LaPorte.

          7                 Okay, any one of you can start. Just

          8  identify yourself.

          9                 MS. ROTHMAN: Almost good morning.

         10  Good morning. My name is Mary Ann Rothman. I am the

         11  Executive Director of the Council of New York

         12  Cooperatives and Condominiums, which is a membership

         13  group providing information, education and advocacy

         14  to some 2,300 co-ops and condominiums in our City,

         15  where about 175,000 families live.

         16                 We have some very small co-ops and

         17  condos, some very, very large ones, some that are

         18  extremely pet friendly, some that would like to

         19  maintain no pet rules. So, I field questions really

         20  all over the place on this issue, and with all due

         21  respect to the witnesses who have gone before me and

         22  to Councilwoman Katz, and the other sponsors of this

         23  bill, I'd like to respectfully suggest that we

         24  haven't looked at this issue from all sides.

         25                 There are many unsuspected
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          2  consequences of large scale pet ownership that we

          3  need to look at and there are many rights of owners

          4  of buildings, whether they're owned as co-ops or

          5  condominiums, or by a landlord responsible for their

          6  upkeep, that we also haven't looked at.

          7                 I don't think that we need to cast

          8  landlord of co-op and condo boards as villains. I

          9  think we all try our best to maintain reasonable,

         10  affordable housing in this City.

         11                 Last week I wrote a letter to Speaker

         12  Miller on the subject of this bill, and the reasons

         13  that the Council of New York Cooperatives and

         14  Condominiums opposes it. By permitting successive

         15  pets in perpetuity without any opportunity to have

         16  any say in who or what these pets are or how many

         17  there are, I think the Council is creating a

         18  potentially difficult and dangerous situation, and I

         19  think I explained a lot of that here. I don't need

         20  to read the whole thing to do, but the first pet may

         21  be a wonderful, delightful animal, the successor pet

         22  may not be as well trained, may not be as obedient,

         23  et cetera, and yet this legislation just brings that

         24  pet in.

         25                 There's also the question of multiple
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          2  pets, and while I think it's extremely nice of the

          3  witnesses who have gone before to talk about

          4  rescuing animals, and rescuing multiple animals,

          5  very often that leads to problems within the

          6  buildings where someone who could take fine care of

          7  one pet now has three or seven or 11 and doesn't

          8  manage to walk them as often as they should, or

          9  clean the litter box as much as they should, and the

         10  building suffers as a result of vermin infestation,

         11  as a result of excessive noise, et cetera, of those

         12  animals.

         13                 So, I think it's important to have

         14  processes that give landlords or co-op boards or

         15  condo boards an opportunity to have a say in what

         16  pets are going to be in the building.

         17                 Thank you for your attention.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 We've been joined by Council Member

         21  James Oddo, Council Member Nelson, and Council

         22  Member Leroy Comrie. There he is.

         23                 We've already taken a vote on the

         24  awning bill, but we left the vote open. Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I vote aye.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'm sorry.

          3  Whoever.

          4                 MR. LaPORTE: My name is Nick LaPorte.

          5  I'm the Executive Director of Associated Builders

          6  and Owners of Greater New York.

          7                 We represent builders, owners and

          8  property managers of all types of housing in the

          9  City, rental and co-op and condo. The units that we

         10  represent roughly are between a half a million and

         11  three quarters of a million units in the City of New

         12  York. And as my colleague Mary Ann Rothman says, we

         13  also field questions constantly about these issues.

         14                 I'm not going to reiterate what

         15  MaryAnn just told you about problems. I think that

         16  everybody is aware of what happens when there are

         17  poor pet owners and how they allow the pets to run

         18  roughshot over the rest of the building.

         19                 I guess my issue here is that this is

         20  a bill that extends in perpetuity a right that

         21  people shouldn't have had in the first place. And by

         22  that I mean is that when you move into a building

         23  and there is a no pet clause, or you buy an

         24  apartment in a co-op or a condo and you sign an

         25  agreement where there is a restriction about
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          2  ownership of pets, and then you bring a pet in under

          3  your coat, in a box, how ever, into the building,

          4  now you are a pet owner for life in this building,

          5  and unless you hide the animal in a box, it's open

          6  and notorious, and that is one of the problems I

          7  have with this bill. The definition of open and

          8  notorious is vague in its meaning. So, you are

          9  setting a standard that no one is going to

         10  understand what that means.

         11                 The other problem with this bill is

         12  the definition of pet. I can have a canary or a

         13  snake or a mouse in my apartment in a cage and

         14  that's a pet. That pet dies, can I replace it with a

         15  Great Dane? I don't know, according to this bill you

         16  can.

         17                 How does a pet mouse meet the open

         18  and notorious standard? A super comes into my

         19  apartment to fix plumbing, does that mean the pet

         20  mouse has now been discovered and it's open and

         21  notorious? What does that mean? I had a pet mouse,

         22  dead, I'm getting a Great Dane? Not an alligator,

         23  maybe a tiger, I don't know.

         24                 I think that the other arguments that

         25  have been made here have been such that, you know,
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          2  they try to tie this into rent regulation, and in an

          3  effort to have landlords push people out of

          4  apartments, out of affordable housing. You know, I

          5  don't remember when vacancy decontrol became a part

          6  of the rent laws, except for luxury decontrol. But

          7  it seems to me when a landlord wants somebody out of

          8  a building, it's not because they have a pet. It's

          9  because they're in some violation of their lease,

         10  which is, in these cases a violation, and I don't

         11  think they're going to get market rent for a rent

         12  stabilized unit. Take a look at the law and see what

         13  it tells you.

         14                 The other piece of this is that there

         15  are people who abuse ownership. I live in a co-op,

         16  I'm the president of a co-op that allows pets, and I

         17  can give you anecdotal stories of how even in a

         18  pet-friendly building, people abuse their rights or

         19  their privileges.

         20                 For example, we had one shareholder

         21  that used to put their animal, a cat, on the

         22  elevator and let it go down to the lobby and sit in

         23  the lobby. And how I discovered this was when I was

         24  walking my dog, which I have a pet, I'm a pet owner,

         25  I don't hate pets, I'm not here to fight. And my dog
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          2  noticed the cat. Not a good scene.

          3                 So, you want to have an animal, you

          4  want to have a pet, go into a building that allows

          5  them, and then when you're there, have some sense of

          6  common decency and concern for your neighbors.

          7                 This bill doesn't do this. All this

          8  bill does is perpetuate a wrong, bad behavior, and

          9  rewards it.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 MR. YAKER: My name is Ed Yaker. I'm

         13  Co-Chair of the Coordinating Council of

         14  Cooperatives.

         15                 Our MO is built on cooperation among

         16  cooperatives. We exchange information, we meet

         17  monthly to talk about the common problems co-op

         18  leaders face.

         19                 Our member co-ops were all built as

         20  limited equity co-ops, either limited dividend,

         21  redevelopment companies or Mitchell-Lamas. Our

         22  co-ops range in size from several hundred to several

         23  thousand families, and all are 100 percent

         24  owner-occupied.

         25                 I'm from Amalgamated houses in the
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          2  Bronx, the oldest limited equity co-op in the

          3  nation, where 1,500 families, our largest member is

          4  Rochdale Village in Queens, which is almost 6,000

          5  families.

          6                 Our problem with Intro. 189 is that

          7  it does accept the earlier legislation, which was

          8  not written to apply to co-ops, but by not

          9  specifically excluding co-ops has been so applied.

         10                 The preamble to that legislation

         11  gives us the reason for the law the fact that some

         12  landlords, who had known about and accepted dogs for

         13  years, then moved to evict tenants so that they

         14  could free up apartments and make a profit on co-op

         15  conversion or increasing the rent.

         16                 Co-ops have no such motivation.

         17  Co-ops don't profit by evicting people. Our carrying

         18  charges remain the same, regardless of turnover.

         19                 Co-ops are democratic, self-governing

         20  communities. Members can change policy

         21  democratically, either by electing Board members who

         22  agree with their position on an issue, or by

         23  petitioning and placing a question on the agenda,

         24  for shareholder vote.

         25                 Intro. 189 contains the language
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          2  about openly and notoriously, and the owner or his

          3  agent has knowledge of this fact.

          4                 Such phrases would seem to protect

          5  owners. Unfortunately, the courts have interpreted

          6  the law in ways that make no sense to us.

          7                 They have accepted statements from

          8  dog owners that a porter saw them with a dog as

          9  proof of owner knowledge. In a co-op, the owner is

         10  represented by a board in a paid management. Union

         11  contracts prohibit a co-op from requiring porters or

         12  handy-men to report dogs.

         13                 Indeed, in a large co-op, a staff

         14  member may not even know that a person is a resident

         15  of a cooperative. In many cases, the legally

         16  responsible officials of a co-op do not have three

         17  months' knowledge of a resident harboring a dog, yet

         18  the courts have imputed such knowledge.

         19                 We ask two things of this or any

         20  future pet legislation:

         21                 1) allow co-ops to govern themselves

         22  democratically by excluding them from provisions of

         23  such legislation.

         24                 2) set a clear standard for owner and

         25  knowledge, such as requiring of the resident to
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          2  provide written notification to the Board or

          3  manager, perhaps through certified mail. Only then

          4  should the three-month clock be started.

          5                 Thank you for your consideration.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 We're going to take the vote.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposed Intro. 272-A,

         10  Council Member Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I vote aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         15  the affirmative, one in the negative, and no

         16  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         18                 Do we have any questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just very

         20  quickly.

         21                 Just sort of on a cursory level this

         22  goes back to what my opening statement was, which is

         23  I think that many folks that oppose this piece of

         24  legislation really oppose the interpretation or the

         25  original law, and this is really meant to extend
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          2  what already exists.

          3                 Now, whether or not we choose to go

          4  back and open the original law, you know, is a

          5  different issue. That's not happening now.

          6                 So, I just sort of want to make that

          7  clear, just I understand your testimony, and I hear

          8  you and last time I think we had some of these

          9  discussions as well. But that really does go back to

         10  how the original legislation was interpreted, and I

         11  guess, the first gentleman -- I apologize. Your

         12  name?

         13                 MR. LaPORTE: Nick LaPorte. LaPorte.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: On so many

         15  levels I would have questions for you, if we weren't

         16  on a time frame, but I guess even though I know that

         17  it was sort of a statement in the absurdity, I would

         18  be curious to know, I mean I don't know how many

         19  tenants really use mice as part of the waiver

         20  provision for cats and dogs.

         21                 MR. LaPORTE: I was using it as the

         22  extreme.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         24                 MR. LaPORTE: I was using it as, I can

         25  have a mouse today and tomorrow I can have a tiger.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: And that's under, there

          4  is no definition of pet. Is it an equal replacement?

          5  That's the absurdity of this bill.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: As the Chair

          7  points out, and she's correct, obviously on both

          8  sides we use examples of the extreme in order to

          9  either be protective of our clients or the position

         10  that we have, but I guess for the record I really

         11  just wanted to point out, this was meant to be for

         12  household pets. You know, obviously the cats and the

         13  dogs issue, I'm not even sure that a landlord ever

         14  even deals with the fact that someone has pet mice

         15  or goldfish or something like that.

         16                 MR. LaPORTE: What that example was

         17  meant to be was how does one define the open and

         18  notorious of I'd had a parakeet, now that parakeet

         19  dies, can I get a dog?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right, thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         23  Member Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         25                 The principle is called reduxio otum
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          2  sertum (phonetic), reducing the argument to its

          3  absurdity, and I'm a fan of when people use it,

          4  although we may or may not disagree on the merits of

          5  the argument of Mr. LaPorte. But let me ask you a

          6  question. The notification provision that you folks

          7  are saying needs to be improved, are there other

          8  examples in the law on other types of notification

          9  that you could point to that are in your mind better

         10  examples of how --

         11                 MR. LaPORTE: There is no notification

         12  provision in this law.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: In other words,

         14  the tenant, or point to me other examples in the law

         15  that requires a tenant to notify --

         16                 MR. LaPORTE: Lead paint, when there

         17  is a child under the age of seven. Are we going

         18  through the lead paint bill again?

         19                 In the lead paint law, Local Law 1 of

         20  2004, there's a provision in there that requires

         21  tenants to notify an owner of a building when a

         22  child under the age of seven resides in a particular

         23  unit.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, would you be

         25  comfortable with if we added a provision?
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          2                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, that would clarify

          3  the open and the notorious piece that has been vague

          4  for years. That makes it a little bit better because

          5  then an owner knows that somebody is bringing a pet

          6  into a building that doesn't belong there and can

          7  stop it before it happens.

          8                 See, the problem here is not just

          9  having a pet in a pet-friendly building, this is a

         10  problem where you've moved into a building, clear

         11  understanding that there is a no pet provision in

         12  your lease or there's a policy in a co-op or a condo

         13  where no pets are permitted. The notice would allow

         14  an owner to say, no, you can't have this pet because

         15  let me refer you back to your piece and it says that

         16  you can't have a pet.

         17                 Or it allows an owner to say, all

         18  right, there's a special circumstance here, or maybe

         19  you know, it's okay, if you're bring in a dog under

         20  15, whatever the animal is.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do you folks put

         22  any stock into the -- I don't know if it's ever been

         23  proven scientifically, but I think it's long

         24  accepted the notion that the quality of life of

         25  folks, particularly seniors, particularly folks who
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          2  have encountered some sort of illness, or that pets

          3  put a dimension back into their lives, that you

          4  really can't get with reading a book or watching a

          5  television show? I mean, do you folks dispute that?

          6                 MR. La PORTE: No. I'm speaking for

          7  myself. I can't speak for my colleagues at the

          8  table. There's no dispute as to the benefit that an

          9  animal may have. That's not the issue here today.

         10  The issue here today is where a tenant lives in a

         11  building where it's been made clear to that tenant

         12  that they're not permitted to have pets, that they

         13  go out and get a pet anyway. It flies in the face of

         14  the lease provision.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I think it

         16  actually is an issue today, because when we're

         17  weighing this bill, like we do with other

         18  legislation, I think you balance different

         19  interests. And clearly I think there is an interest,

         20  and I think it's well-established, as I said, if not

         21  in science, certainly in experience, that pets do

         22  add a dimension to people's lives. And we have to

         23  factor that in, and, we, as Council members evaluate

         24  the benefits of this bill versus the detriments that

         25  you folks are talking about.
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          2                 MS. LaPORTE: There is two ways to go

          3  with that. There is, yes, there is a benefit of pets

          4  to people. But if you move into a pet-friendly

          5  building, that's one thing. That's fine. You have

          6  your pet and you have your -- if you move into a

          7  building, though, that has strict no pet policies,

          8  and you know this up front, why are you moving into

          9  that building if you need a pet, or you want to have

         10  a pet?

         11                 As I said, a notice provision might

         12  give an owner the opportunity to say, well, this is

         13  an elderly person who had a stroke, or may have had

         14  a recent loss and the companionship is helpful, they

         15  can make that exception.

         16                 Mary Ann said, and she can echo this,

         17  she can speak for herself, actually, there would be

         18  provisions set for the care and the maintenance of

         19  that pet in the buildings.

         20                 So, there's ways of doing this, it's

         21  just that don't let that have a blanket law that

         22  gives people a right in perpetuity when they move --

         23  and it's not even a question of whether they moved

         24  into a pet-friendly building that changed. They

         25  moved into a building that has a no pet provision.
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          2  This is the bottom line on this. Go to a building

          3  that accepts pets.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just for the

          5  record, Mr. LaPorte, I was well aware of the

          6  notification provision of Local Law 1 of 2004.

          7                 MR. LaPORTE: I had a feeling you

          8  were.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And as you know,

         10  I think the notification provision of Local Law 1,

         11  2004 is inadequate.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         15  Council Member Reyna.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mr. LaPorte, I

         17  just wanted to ask a question. It's time to clarify

         18  a lot of what has been said.

         19                 You said you own a pet?

         20                 MR. LaPORTE: I own a pet. I live in a

         21  pet-friendly building. I'm president of a co-op. We

         22  allow pets, and I own it, I own a dog.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What you

         24  disagree with is a law governing --

         25                 MR. LaPORTE: What I disagree with is
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          2  the basic extension, and I understand we've been

          3  living with this law for almost 20 years now, but

          4  what this does is give a person who has violated a

          5  lease provision rights in perpetuity, they have

          6  gotten through the first waiver of ownership of a

          7  pet because they've gone past the three-month period

          8  under the current law, this law extends that right

          9  in perpetuity for the life of the tenancy, and

         10  that's wrong. I mean, that's basically wrong because

         11  it was bad behavior that has gotten away with once

         12  and now it's being rewarded for the life of the

         13  tenancy. And I am not anti-pet. My feeling is if you

         14  want to have a pet -- I moved into this condo about

         15  three and a half years go and the first question I

         16  asked of the real estate broker before I entered

         17  into negotiations for the purchase is "Is this a

         18  pet-friendly building?" Because I had a dog at the

         19  time. And if they would have said no, I would be

         20  living in a different building now. I wasn't going

         21  to get rid of my pet. I understand the attachment

         22  people have to pets. I'm the first one that would,

         23  you know, defend a pet's rights, against abuse or

         24  anything like that. I just don't think that you

         25  should come into somebody else's property and set

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the parameters of your tenancy outside of the lease.

          3                 We're all intelligent people, we know

          4  what we're entering into. You know you're going into

          5  a building that says no pets; why are you buying a

          6  pet?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you for

          8  the clarification.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

         10  James.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. LaPorte,

         12  I'm trying to sort of understand your rationale.

         13  Your objection to this is sort of limited. It's

         14  limited to the situation where individuals move into

         15  apartments or co-ops where there is a no-pet clause.

         16                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, that's what the

         17  purpose of this legislation is.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me just

         19  finish.

         20                 MR. LaPORTE: Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And then

         22  individuals who, your argument is that we are

         23  rewarding bad behavior because these individuals,

         24  who in some cases may not have their pet openly and

         25  notoriously somehow, they can somehow get around the
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          2  no pet clause and therefore they would be rewarded,

          3  and you have a problem with that. But isn't that

          4  really in a limited instance? I mean, if that isn't

          5  a general rule.

          6                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, it's a general

          7  rule. It's the underlying theory of this bill.

          8                 What this bill is doing is saying

          9  that you had a pet, or you have a pet, and you've

         10  gone a three-month period open and notoriously,

         11  which means that somebody at some long stretch and

         12  chain of ownership may have seen your pet, and now

         13  that waives that no-pet provision, because somebody

         14  has knowledge in the building that's got some

         15  relationship to the owner.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But under the

         17  law you have to be an agent of the management.

         18                 MR. La PORTE: That could be a porter.

         19  That could be a super. That could be a handyman,

         20  that can be any person in the building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right. Exactly.

         22                 MR. LaPORTE: And so far removed from

         23  the ownership.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But the law

         25  recognizes these individuals as agents of the
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          2  management.

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I guess to

          5  some extent they appoint them as pet police,

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. LaPORTE: Yes. Your words.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But it's really

          9  a limited instance. I mean, it's a limited universe.

         10  It doesn't apply to the wide variety of cases.

         11                 MR. LaPORTE: Well, I guess I don't

         12  understand what you mean by limited universe.

         13  Because it's all -- what this bill deals with is all

         14  those buildings that are not pet friendly that have

         15  a no pet clause, either in their lease or in their

         16  co-op or condo agreements when you purchase an

         17  apartment. This is the universe. I don't have

         18  numbers. I would guess that you guys have better

         19  sense as to the numbers out there, but I will tell

         20  you that I have one member that owns, I've got to

         21  say a couple of hundred thousand units in the City

         22  of New York that has a no-pet clause in his lease.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But my point to

         24  you is, if individuals -- again, if you live in a

         25  building where they have a no-pet clause in the
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          2  lease or in the shareholders' agreement --

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: -- And if

          5  individuals openly and notoriously --

          6                 MR. LaPORTE: They walk their dog or

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: -- You know,

          9  walk around with dogs, then I would think because

         10  this is a building which is not hospitable and/or

         11  friendly to animals, that you would basically want

         12  to prevent this individual from gaining any rights,

         13  correct?

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, then how

         16  does this bill prevent that?

         17                 MR. LaPORTE: Because the open and

         18  notorious provision of this bill, and I know it's

         19  the old law as well, was vague. It was vague. Open

         20  and notorious could mean anything from walking the

         21  dog at the building, have a porter look at it, see

         22  if -- Donald Trump, for example, does not know who

         23  the porter is in one of his buildings in Brooklyn,

         24  but that porter, who may or may not have any

         25  knowledge of what the building provisions are for
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          2  pets, sees a dog, I can go in and say, well, you

          3  know, John the Porter saw me with the dog.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I would think

          5  that Donald Trump's building or any high-end

          6  building such as that, all of these staff

          7  individuals would be put on record that if, in fact,

          8  you see an animal in this building, please report it

          9  to management.

         10                 MR. LaPORTE: But what this bill is

         11  doing is taking this three-month waiver and saying,

         12  okay, after the first pet has been there, been open

         13  and notorious for three months, you can now, without

         14  having to worry about who sees you walking your dog,

         15  the next pet is in for free and the pet after that

         16  and the pet after that, and the pet after that, or

         17  five at one time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me just say

         19  this -- I'm sorry, Ma'am, I forget your name.

         20                 MS. ROTHMAN: Mary Ann.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Ms. Mary Ann,

         22  you indicated, you talked about the problem of

         23  multiple pets, and I would think that there would be

         24  other provisions in your lease and your shareholders

         25  agreement that would address that, which would
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          2  provide you remedies to have individuals evicted.

          3  Such as nuisance laws, such as health codes, such as

          4  --

          5                 MS. ROTHMAN: Look at this

          6  legislation, it says harbors or harbored a pet or

          7  pets. This is an invitation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, I recognize

          9  that.

         10                 MS. ROTHMAN: For somebody who perhaps

         11  even got permission 12 years ago to get one pet.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But I would

         13  think there are other protections in the law which

         14  will prevent individuals from creating unsanitary

         15  conditions.

         16                 MS. ROTHMAN: There certainly are

         17  provisions in the law, but why should we look with

         18  favor on an unnecessary law that's going to open the

         19  door for problems, which we then have to go to court

         20  or the Department of health to cure. I think we have

         21  to look squarely at what the problems are that this

         22  legislation invites and I think when we do we will

         23  vote down this legislation.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: My mother is 87

         25  years old, and this is so timely. Last night I went
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          2  home and my mother is sick, and she lives alone, and

          3  she said to me, Tish, would you go out and get me an

          4  animal over the weekend, because I'm very lonely?

          5  And, so, you know, she wants companionship because

          6  I'm not there that much.

          7                 MS. ROTHMAN: Shouldn't she ask her

          8  landlord for permission to have that animal?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I am her

         10  landlord.

         11                 MR. La PORTE: So, then it's a

         12  pet-friendly building we're assuming.

         13                 MS. ROTHMAN: So then she just did ask

         14  her landlord.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, and she's

         16  going to get a little cat this weekend.

         17                 MR. La PORTE: And you're a friendly

         18  landlord, and this bill does not affect your mother.

         19                 MS. ROTHMAN: And you're going to help

         20  your mother change the litterbox.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The point is,

         22  is that it provides individuals who are sick and

         23  elderly and lonely with companionship.

         24                 MS. ROTHMAN: We don't disagree the

         25  slightest, and most co-ops or condos could be
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          2  perfectly willing to entertain a request like that,

          3  and would probably try very hard to accommodate such

          4  a shareholder, maybe even find a neighbor to walk

          5  the puppy or to change the litterbox, but this law

          6  takes away all rights of a co-op or condo to set any

          7  kind of rules.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          9                 MR. YAKER: Could I comment on a point

         10  you made where you said the co-op could order its

         11  staff to report any dogs. We are union employers.

         12  The union will not allow us to discipline a porter

         13  who does not report a dog. Therefore, we can't set

         14  that policy. Because let's say you have a

         15  pet-friendly porter, yeah, I saw the dog, I'm not

         16  telling ya. Now it's got three months' notice, what

         17  choice does the legitimate management of the co-op

         18  have in that situation?

         19                 I'd also compliment you in that your

         20  mother has a daughter who attends to her needs.

         21                 We have -- you know, someone asked

         22  about seniors, our family of co-ops created the NORC

         23  concept, Naturally Occurring Retirement Communities,

         24  where the co-op seeks to help seniors and do

         25  everything possible to help meet the needs of

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  seniors. So, we appreciate that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: May I?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The Chair is

          6  being very patient with me because of the time

          7  frame, so I appreciate that.

          8                 But just two quick issues. Just so

          9  it's clear for the record, there is a health and

         10  nuisance provision in the legislation already, that

         11  will not change. If there is a health or a nuisance

         12  problem, and a pet -- now you got me saying mice --

         13  with a pet, the provision that is waived, you can

         14  bring another type of action for nuisance or health

         15  problems with the courts. So that would address the

         16  problem hopefully of having multiple animals in a

         17  small setting.

         18                 But Mr. LaPorte, I hate to pick on

         19  you, but this is --

         20                 MR. LaPORTE: That's okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You brought this

         22  up. You said it's waived once, and it shouldn't be

         23  for the life of the tenancy because it's waived

         24  once.

         25                 Now, you have to forgive me, because
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          2  I was a mergers and acquisition attorney before I

          3  was a Council member, and what's interesting to me

          4  is that a waiver in a contract normally goes with

          5  the two parties that have a contract, and from what

          6  you're saying, it seems like it's going with the

          7  cat.

          8                 MR. LaPORTE: It's going with the

          9  tenancy under this bill.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's correct.

         11  And what I'm saying is that normally when one weighs

         12  a provision in a contract, if you know differently

         13  please correct me, but normally when one weighs a

         14  provision, you don't have the right a year later to

         15  come back and say, look, I know I waived that right,

         16  but now I would like it back.

         17                 And what I'm saying is that it would

         18  seem to me, I guess I would like your reaction very

         19  briefly because the Chair is being patient with me,

         20  as to it seems almost as if you're letting the

         21  waiver go with the pet, and the pets don't have a

         22  right to create a waiver.

         23                 MR. LaPORTE: No. You know that's not

         24  true.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. That's my
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          2  point to you, is that the people create the

          3  contracts.

          4                 MR. LaPORTE: In this case, no. The

          5  people create the contract, the contract that got

          6  created with the tenant, is that there is no pet in

          7  your unit, okay? This law creates the waiver that I

          8  can have, the tenant can have a pet in their

          9  apartment, if they're open and notorious for three

         10  months. I did not create that waiver with the

         11  tenant. I was not a party to that waiver. This was

         12  all intervened on my behalf, all right?

         13  Involuntarily, I just -- this provision of the lease

         14  was not waived by me, the landlord, it was waived

         15  under the auspices of this law. I didn't agree to

         16  this.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I get that. But

         18  your contract --

         19                 MR. LaPORTE: My contract says --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: -- Which gives

         21  you the right to bring a tenant to court, is a

         22  contract between the landlord and the tenant, that's

         23  the provision that stands to be raised should the

         24  landlord not bring the tenant to court in order to

         25  adhere to that provision. So, my comment really is,
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          2  what you're saying is that you should have multiple

          3  rights to be able to waive the provision.

          4                 MR. LaPORTE: No. What I'm saying is

          5  that the vagueness of the way the waiver is

          6  implemented opens up avenues for abuse, as my

          7  colleague to my right says --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So it's really

          9  still the original law?

         10                 MR. LaPORTE: Yes. Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's really

         12  still the original law.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. LaPORTE: This just perpetuates

         15  it. I'm sorry.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: There's a

         17  great big ugly black fly here. Could we evict him,

         18  or are we allowed to do that?

         19                 MR. LaPORTE: Swat it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: He's sitting

         21  right there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: He's now waived.

         23                 MR. LaPORTE: Come back in three

         24  months and then it could be here for life.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: If we get a
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          2  waiver on him, we can have a dog or a cat?

          3                 MR. LaPORTE: That's right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 MR. LaPORTE: Do you feed it? It's

          6  your pet.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I think there

          8  are no more questions. Thank you.

          9                 MR. La PORTE: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Robert

         11  Friedlander, Darryl Vernon, and Lisa Weinberg. It's

         12  Weisberg, I'm sorry. It looks like an N on this

         13  sheet.

         14                 Any one of you could start. Just

         15  identify yourselves, please.

         16                 MR. VERNON: Good morning, honorable

         17  members of the Council. Thank you for having this

         18  hearing. My name is Darryl Vernon. I have

         19  represented pet owners for roughly the past two

         20  decades in a situation where they are having to be

         21  defended from being evicted from either their rent

         22  regulated apartments or perhaps their co-ops or

         23  condominiums.

         24                 Let me address, certainly any

         25  questions I'll be glad to answer, but let me address
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          2  immediately the co-op and this union contract issue.

          3                 Back when the law first passed, the

          4  courts very quickly held that this law applied to

          5  co-ops, and they did it for many, many reasons, and

          6  one is that there was a ruling that co-op unit

          7  owners are in as much a need of protection under

          8  various laws as are every other tenant in the City,

          9  and that there was no reason that co-ops should be

         10  treated as some idyllic democracy that should be

         11  exempt from various laws. They are covered by

         12  discrimination laws, which they have violated and

         13  had to pay the consequences. They are covered by

         14  roommate laws, when they try to not let someone have

         15  a roommate in their apartment, and they are covered

         16  by the pet law, and for very good reason.

         17                 This union contract issue by the way,

         18  I have never seen, and I have read many of the

         19  contracts, that there would be a prohibition against

         20  the porter being able to report a pet. I would

         21  submit that if that were the case, then the owners

         22  perhaps negotiated something and decided they didn't

         23  care about that, and it reminds me to some extent of

         24  places like Stuyvesant Town and Peter Cooper, where

         25  what they tried to do was put in place an
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          2  independent contractor agreement that provided that

          3  all of their employees at the site were not direct

          4  employees, and therefore they can say the three

          5  months doesn't start running. It was all a ruse to

          6  try to get around this problem.

          7                 So, the issue of the owner knowing,

          8  and knowing through the various agencies, a concept

          9  that has always existed in the law, the concept of

         10  constructive knowledge has always existed.

         11                 Now, on to the issue of the three

         12  months having run again, back in roughly 1986 we

         13  represented Mary Margaret Johnson, a senior citizen

         14  who always had a dog. She was in a rent-regulated

         15  apartment, and it was open in the Opinion of Brown

         16  versus Johnson where the Court held that once you

         17  have had a pet for more than three months, that at

         18  that point, like Council Member Katz pointed out, it

         19  is the agreement provision, the lease provision that

         20  is indeed weighed. And it's weighed for many

         21  reasons. One is that that is a general concept in

         22  the law; and, number two, the way the statute is

         23  written, it's first the people having harbored a pet

         24  in the past.

         25                 So, this is not a change at all, this
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          2  is a clarification of what the courts had been

          3  holding for roughly a decade before the 1996

          4  Decision.

          5                 And I also must reiterate that this

          6  is not about owners caring about pets causing a

          7  problem. The percentage of cases that we see of the

          8  hundreds of cases that we see, is minuscule where

          9  there is some problem or a claim of nuisance.

         10                 And when there is such a problem, a

         11  case can always be brought on the claim of nuisance.

         12                 This is a product of, in the case of

         13  rent regulation, owners wanting to get their

         14  apartments out of rent stabilization, and contrary

         15  to what was testified by the owner's counsel,

         16  apartments will indeed leave rent stabilization in

         17  many, many situations if a tenant is evicted or has

         18  to leave because of their pet.

         19                 Luxury deregulation was enacted in

         20  1993, and this has caused tremendous problems and a

         21  tremendous increase in the number of people we have

         22  had to defend, who have had either a first or a

         23  second pet.

         24                 At the last hearing in which I

         25  testified in December 6th, Council Member Katz asked
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          2  is there an issue over a second pet being maybe even

          3  more, occurring even more, and the answer is, yes,

          4  it can, because at that point you've had -- I'll

          5  just finish up this point -- I forgot the timing. In

          6  any case it does happen, and the reason is that the

          7  tenant has made the apartment their home. Luxury

          8  deregulation has been enacted, rents have gone up

          9  tremendously where an owner would love to deregulate

         10  the apartment, take it out of regulation all

         11  together, and raise the rent.

         12                 And for co-ops we have very similar

         13  situations. A board is making decisions for very

         14  different reasons that are unrelated to any

         15  particular problem.

         16                 Thank you for hearing me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         18                 MS. WEISBERG: Good morning. My name

         19  is Lisa Weisberg. I'm the Senior Vice President of

         20  Government Affairs and Public Policy for the ASPCA.

         21  I'd like to thank the Committee very much for the

         22  opportunity to testify in support of Intro. 189.

         23                 I will just say from the outset that

         24  the ASPCA has recently refocused its efforts back

         25  into New York City, and to that end we have
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          2  committed $5 million over the next five years to

          3  find homes for all healthy, adoptable animals in New

          4  York City.

          5                 We are not going to be able to do

          6  this unless we can get Intro. 189 passed.

          7                 The current interpretation of the law

          8  greatly has a chilling effect on people's ability to

          9  adopt an animal into their home.

         10                 One of the most heartbreaking calls

         11  that we get at the ASPCA is about some tenants who

         12  have to relinquish their pet because of the new

         13  interpretation of the three-month law, and I

         14  personally have received many of these phone calls.

         15  And we have to be honest with them. These are

         16  responsible pet owners. The ASPCA does not endorse

         17  irresponsible pet ownership. Believe me, we used to

         18  do animal control, and we know all about it. So, as

         19  you've heard before, the Nuisance provision remains

         20  intact. There are various health code provisions. I

         21  understand that the oppositions claim that they

         22  don't have to deal with it, but it would be patently

         23  unfair to deny responsible pet owners, as well as

         24  potential owners the opportunity to have a pet. It

         25  would be like saying that no one should receive a
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          2  driver's license because there are some

          3  irresponsible drivers.

          4                 Like I said, the ASPCA is very

          5  committed to adopting all healthy animals into homes

          6  and we want New York City to become no kill. We are

          7  not going to be able to do this without this

          8  legislation.

          9                 And I would also mention that by

         10  adopting animals into homes, we would also enable

         11  animal care and control to greatly benefit, since it

         12  will reduce the numbers of animals relinquished to

         13  its facilities, as well as those people who abandon

         14  animals on the street.

         15                 Over time, the cost to perform animal

         16  control would decrease and stabilize due to fewer

         17  animals entering its facilities.

         18                 Implementation of a pet policy

         19  actually provides many safeguards against

         20  irresponsible pet ownership. This certainly was the

         21  case when the ASPCA spearheaded legislation in

         22  Congress in 1998, similar to Intro. 189, which

         23  provides tenants and federally-assisted housing with

         24  the ability to have a companion animal. Vehement

         25  opposition was raised by both the New York City
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          2  Housing Authority and HUD based on the problems

          3  experienced with some animals, in particular, dogs

          4  being trained to fight. Yet, despite the pet ban,

          5  many tenants harbored an animal both responsibly and

          6  irresponsibly.

          7                 The legislation, which ultimately was

          8  enacted into law, now provides Housing Authorities

          9  across the country with the ability to better

         10  monitor the pets kept in these developments and

         11  procedures to take should an animal become a

         12  nuisance.

         13                 And I'll just add one more point,

         14  that the initial reluctance and fear felt by housing

         15  officials and residential real estate owners at the

         16  prospect of a pet law is not nearly -- indeed, many

         17  of these fears were expressed by the Massachusetts

         18  State Legislature back in 1989 when they were

         19  considering a --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please close.

         21                 MS. WEISBERG: -- Bill to grant senior

         22  citizens the ability to have a pet and those fears

         23  were unrealized.

         24                 So, we certainly hope the Council

         25  will support this bill and pass it shortly. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. FRIEDLANDER: Good morning. My

          4  name is Robert Friedlander, a member of the

          5  Association of the Bar of the City of New York,

          6  Committee on Legal Issues pertaining to animals. I

          7  want to thank you for the opportunity to testify

          8  this morning.

          9                 With respect to the amendment, the

         10  proposed amendment will serve both to clarify the

         11  original intent of the 1983 pet law and to set a

         12  recent conflicting court decision regarding a law,

         13  which was actually discussed earlier by Ms.

         14  Moglemott.

         15                 The legislative history of the 1983

         16  pet law reveals that the companionship and security

         17  provided by the household animal are compelling.

         18  Thus, a person's right in general to have a

         19  companion animal, is as important to have a

         20  particular animal. Once the required three months

         21  lapses, the right must vest in general, not just for

         22  a particular companion animal, which is just common

         23  sense.

         24                 Judicial decisions have varied in

         25  their interpretations on this point, indicating a
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          2  need for clarification. Before 1996, courts

          3  considering the 1983 pet law generally held or

          4  implied that a waiver of a no pet clause after three

          5  months was intended to apply for the duration of the

          6  tenancy.

          7                 As was discussed earlier, there was a

          8  1996 case which basically overruled that. The 1996

          9  appellate term decision held that when a building

         10  owner fails to commence suit within the required

         11  three-month period, it is not the lease provision

         12  itself that is waived, but the enforcement or lease

         13  provision against the particular pet.

         14                 More recently still, one Appellate

         15  Division case implied that once three months have

         16  passed, the clause may be waived for all future pets

         17  during the tenancy.

         18                 The Court held that all extent leases

         19  were thereby amended by operation of law to render

         20  no pet clauses waiverable under the terms of the

         21  ordinance.

         22                 There is some controversy over the

         23  issue that requires clarification of the original

         24  intent of the law. The Committee believes that the

         25  proposed modification complies with the intended
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          2  meeting of 1983 pet law.

          3                 I wanted to also add one thing. With

          4  respect to the example given earlier by the

          5  gentlemen, I believe he was from the Co-op Board,

          6  about the mouse and the dog. Yes, I understand that

          7  was an exaggeration and it's not realistic, I

          8  believe a more realistic example and much more

          9  common would be a situation where you have either an

         10  elderly person or even a younger person that has had

         11  an animal for say, ten, 13, 14 years, providing

         12  companionship and many other benefits, and then that

         13  animal passes away. And now all of a sudden if he or

         14  she would like to get another companion animal to

         15  continue that benefit, they would have you not have

         16  this amendment take place, which is why this

         17  amendment is so important.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         20                 Do we have any questions? No, thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 Frank Ricci, Claudia Justy, and

         23  Andrew Hoffman.

         24                 Any one of you may start.

         25                 MR. RICCI: Thank you, Madam Chair. My
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          2  name is Frank Ricci. I'm the Director of Government

          3  Affairs for the Rent Stabilization Association.

          4                 I want to thank you and members of

          5  the Committee who are here today to listen to our

          6  testimony.

          7                 I testified last December on the same

          8  issue, a different bill I realized. I want to

          9  reiterate what I said then and also lend my support

         10  to what was previously testified by the Council of

         11  Co-Ops and ABO, and the limited equity co-ops.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Frank, is

         13  your mic on?

         14                 MR. RICCI: Yes, it is.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         16                 MR. RICCI: The Rent Stabilization

         17  Association represents about 25,000 owners and

         18  managers of rental as well as co-ops in New York

         19  City. Often times we find ourselves in the middle of

         20  disputes or complaints amongst tenants in co-ops or

         21  rentals. I really take issue with some of the prior

         22  testimony today where it was insinuated, and

         23  actually stated, I should say, that the owner's only

         24  motivation in bringing some of these actions for

         25  trying to enforce the law is simply to vacate an
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          2  apartment is simply not true. I don't think the

          3  numbers bear that out either.

          4                 On the one hand some people said

          5  that, then they said on the other hand there's very

          6  few nuisance cases ever brought in court. So, you

          7  can't have it both ways.

          8                 What I'd like to do to maybe

          9  distinguish my testimony from the prior testimony

         10  against this bill is maybe clarify some of the

         11  questions that Councilwoman Katz and James were

         12  asking for.

         13                 In the same vein that Councilwoman

         14  Katz suggested or stated, that the necessity for

         15  this law is the court decision that came down in

         16  1996, Emike versus somebody, that changed the

         17  dynamic in terms of replacing a pet; the reason that

         18  our organization and the others are raising the

         19  issue about open and notorious, is there has also

         20  been a landmarked case in the New York City courts,

         21  that have changed the definition of what is open and

         22  notorious. And I think Councilwoman James kind of

         23  hit the nail on the head before when you were

         24  asking, well, doesn't a building employee, porter or

         25  super, aren't they going to tell the owner? The
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          2  problem is the current state of the law says, and

          3  this was a Court of Appeals Decision, says that if

          4  an owner goes out and actually hires an outside

          5  contractor, and the specific case, he was a plumber,

          6  and the plumber's helper happened to notice that

          7  there was a dog in the apartment, because that

          8  contractor works for the owner, then that is open

          9  and notorious. And that's simply not realistic to

         10  expect an outside contractor like that to go and

         11  inform an owner of what's going on in the apartment

         12  when he may have no knowledge of what the owner's

         13  policy is on that.

         14                 So, I think the whole idea of

         15  clarifying what is open and notorious is an

         16  important issue to take up in any further

         17  deliberations on this bill.

         18                 With that, as I said earlier, I

         19  really support and echo the comments of the three

         20  prior people who testified against this bill. And

         21  I'll end on that note.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         23                 MR. HOFFMAN: My name is Andrew

         24  Hoffman, I'm the President of the Community Housing

         25  Improvement Program. I'm also an owner/operator of
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          2  residential housing in New York City. I manage all

          3  different types of buildings, rentals, co-ops,

          4  condos, lofts, just about all types of residential

          5  buildings.

          6                 Some of my buildings are pet

          7  friendly, and some of my buildings have no pet

          8  policies.

          9                 Pet friendly is not for everyone. I

         10  have a number of buildings, rentals, co-ops, condos

         11  that don't allow pets at all.

         12                 When someone rents or buys apartments

         13  in these buildings, they know quite well the

         14  building doesn't allow pets and they enter into an

         15  agreement, they represent, they understand the rules

         16  of that particular building.

         17                 People moving into these buildings by

         18  and large want a no pet building. That's why they

         19  have chosen a no pet building, either they're afraid

         20  of pets or they simply don't like them.

         21                 A no pet building presents many

         22  problems to the professional property owner. While

         23  we all like to think we know what's going on in our

         24  buildings all the time, it's simply impossible to

         25  know what's going on in every apartment. Typically
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          2  we need to rely on our building employees, such as

          3  the porters and superintendents, to ensure the

          4  building doesn't have any pets.

          5                 In my 20 plus years of managing

          6  residential real estate, I have come across a number

          7  of occasions where a resident acquires a pet in a no

          8  pet building, does his or her best to hide that fact

          9  from the owners of the building, but makes sure that

         10  some lower level employee, as a porter or

         11  superintendent, sort of knows that the pet is there,

         12  starting the 90-day waiver period.

         13                 If for some reason I don't object the

         14  pet within this period, I must consent allowing the

         15  residents to keep this pet as long as the pet is

         16  well behaved.

         17                 Let's back up for a minute. I used

         18  the "pet" word many times in the past page."Pet"

         19  needs to be clarified, particularly as it relates to

         20  Intro. 189.

         21                 I live in Manhattan. I have a wife,

         22  three kids, a dog, a cat, a turtle and a snake. All

         23  four of these animals have names, and as far as I'm

         24  concerned, they're part of my family.

         25                 Each one is considered a pet. The
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          2  biggest problem I have with Intro. 189 is the fact

          3  that as far as the law is concerned, a pet is a pet

          4  is a pet, except of course, if you're Harry Potter

          5  and you could make a pet into anything you want.

          6                 You know, I have a turtle, that's a

          7  tortoise. The superintendent of my building knows I

          8  have one. I bring in the bedding for the tortoise, I

          9  bring in turtle food, so it's open and notorious

         10  that I have that turtle.

         11                 They have waived the period for that

         12  90 days. If a tenant has a snake, a turtle, or a

         13  goldfish, they forever have the ability to bring any

         14  type of pet into a no-pet building.

         15                 I'll tell you, from owners who have

         16  no pet buildings, having a goldfish or a small

         17  reptile in a no-pet building isn't really a problem,

         18  except if Intro. 189 was passed.

         19                 I believe that if it's passed, many

         20  people who previously allow small caged animals

         21  would no longer have this ability.

         22                 I'm sorry I can't understand the

         23  wisdom of the City Council for contemplating such a

         24  measure. I think this introduction should be

         25  stopped, and I appreciate the opportunity to speak
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          2  with you today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 MS. JUSTY: Good morning. I am Claudia

          5  Justy, Executive Director of CHIP, Community Housing

          6  Improvement Program.

          7                 CHIP is a 40-year-old trade

          8  association representing over 1,500 mid-sized

          9  property owners, owning and managing multi-family

         10  housing units in and around the five boroughs of New

         11  York. Thank you for the opportunity to comment on

         12  this bill introduction affecting our members.

         13                 People think of household pets as

         14  many things - companions, best friends, or even

         15  members of the family.

         16                 For multi-family property owners, the

         17  presence of household pets creates another challenge

         18  to their ability to manage their building

         19  sufficiently.

         20                 When you speak of maintaining pets at

         21  an apartment, we also have dogs, cats, fish or

         22  birds.

         23                 But today's pets are no longer

         24  limited to traditional categories. Tenants now bring

         25  all types of animals, some domesticated and some
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          2  not, into multiple dwellings where they are not

          3  appropriate.

          4                 Iguanas, lizards, poisonous snakes,

          5  pigeons, pet store exotic rats and alligators, not

          6  to mention the occasional tiger, have all found

          7  their way into New York City rental apartments.

          8                 Although, CHIP understands that this

          9  bill is concerned with, quote, "household pets not

         10  prohibited by the multiple dwelling law of the

         11  Housing, Maintenance or Health Codes," the reality

         12  is that people will define pets by their own tastes

         13  and interests.

         14                 If a tenant brings any pet into an

         15  apartment where the lease prohibits the harboring of

         16  an animal, they are going to do their utmost to

         17  conceal it from the owner or the owner's agent.

         18                 The majority of CHIP members do not

         19  have doormen in their buildings, nor do they have a

         20  building superintendent standing on patrol, at hours

         21  when people usually walk dogs.

         22                 In the case of a cat, bird, fish,

         23  reptile or other type of animal, the tenant can

         24  easily conceal it for a long period of time.

         25                 As the owner understands, the owner
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          2  must be diligent in discovering the existence of an

          3  animal in their building, and once discovered, they

          4  must take immediate action to commence a proceeding

          5  against the tenant for violation of the lease.

          6                 If they do not, they risk placing

          7  themselves in a position where they will be

          8  answerable to other tenants when that adorable pit

          9  bull puppy grows into the building snarling menace.

         10  Or the scenario where the aging tenant feels that

         11  the existing cat is lonely and needs a companion at.

         12  Now there can be two animals not being cared for.

         13                 This proposed law goes too far in

         14  trying to protect these companions, best friends and

         15  members of the family.

         16                 A property owner cannot relinquish

         17  his or her rights to manage a building in a safe or

         18  responsible manner.

         19                 The tenant has not proven to be a

         20  responsible pet owner, why should they be allowed to

         21  bring in a replacement pet?

         22                 If this bill passes, the City Council

         23  will be adding to an ever-increasing burden on

         24  property owners to manage their buildings.

         25                 They will be responsible for
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          2  constantly monitoring whether or not a tenant is

          3  violating a specific clause in their lease.

          4                 In addition, when a long-term tenant

          5  with a pet which has been grandfathered in place

          6  dies, the pet that is, the owner will now be able to

          7  -- the owner will now have to allow a replacement

          8  pet.

          9                 What happens if the first pet was a

         10  Doxin and the next one is a Great Dane and the

         11  tenant occupies a studio apartment?

         12                 A recent New York Times' article

         13  detailed the lives of New Yorkers who lived with

         14  large dogs in apartments, so this is not an

         15  unrealistic scenario.

         16                 It is unreasonable to ask property

         17  owners to manage a building with very tenant

         18  interests, and then tie their hands on taking action

         19  with respect to an aging tenant who cannot care for

         20  their animal.

         21                 CHIP urges that this bill be

         22  defeated, as tenants have adequate rights to

         23  maintain a household pet under current. It should

         24  not become a life tenancy.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3                 I have a question. The issue came up

          4  of the word "pet" and we're not clarifying what kind

          5  of pet. When you move into a building that has a

          6  lease, a no pet building, what does the lease say?

          7  Does the lease say no cats or dogs? Does the lease

          8  say no pets? How is that usually worded? Is it also

          9  vague?

         10                 MR. RICCI: There's at least four

         11  different leases that are commonly used in New York

         12  City, and I believe there is some variation on that.

         13                 I would have to check on that and get

         14  back to you.

         15                 I know the leases I use in my

         16  building say no cats or dogs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No cats or

         18  dogs, okay.

         19                 So, all this other stuff with snakes

         20  and mice and whatever is totally irrelevant?

         21                 MR. RICCI: No, I don't think it's

         22  totally irrelevant, because it's the reason that

         23  we're hearing. And Councilwoman Katz started off the

         24  meeting today with saying that the premise of this

         25  bill is that there was a court interpretation, and
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          2  the more vague any bill is, the more you're going to

          3  have court interpretations down the road that are

          4  going to challenge the law and create more

          5  confusion.

          6                 So, I think our fear in terms of what

          7  is considered a pet is, this bill is not specific.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right.

          9                 MR. RICCI: If it was specific, then

         10  we wouldn't have that objection, because we wouldn't

         11  be afraid that some judge down the road is going to

         12  make a decision saying that you can replace a, you

         13  know, turtle with a dog.

         14                 MR. HOFFMAN: The problem here is that

         15  the 90 day period is waived forever. So, as the

         16  example I used, I have a turtle, it's not an absurd

         17  example, all right? My child has a turtle, that

         18  turtle is open and notorious. Everybody in the

         19  building, the superintendent feeds the turtle when

         20  I'm on vacation, et cetera.

         21                 Under this law, under this intro, I

         22  can now, when that turtle dies, get a dog. I don't

         23  have to ask for permission. I don't have to start a

         24  90-day period. If the landlord finds that I have a

         25  dog, he can't evoke a 90-day period in which he
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          2  could object to that dog, because they've already

          3  weighed that period for the turtle. I don't

          4  understand that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, part of

          6  the problem is that the language is vague, and I

          7  agree, and I've actually brought that up with the

          8  sponsor, and the answer seems to be, although I'm

          9  sitting here watching her do this, I know she wants

         10  to speak, but the answer seems to be that the

         11  original legislation was that way.

         12                 Actually, I have a couple -- I even

         13  have a problem with the word "harbors." When you say

         14  "harboring a pet," I mean you harbor criminals.

         15                 MR. RICCI: That was the other issue I

         16  think that's been raised by everyone today whose

         17  opposed this bill is, open and notorious has been

         18  interpreted by the courts to be someone who is

         19  really not an employee of the owner. So, I think you

         20  heard a suggestion by one of the prior speakers that

         21  if there is notification by certified mail, or some

         22  kind of official notification, that would go a long

         23  way to alleviating the concerns that a lot of owners

         24  and managers and co-op boards. It's just the lack of

         25  specificity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Because, you

          3  know, and I've said this at the last hearing, I'm

          4  not anti-pet. I've had cats, dogs, I'm the

          5  grandmother to two cats, you know, rabbits, fish,

          6  the whole gamut, but what seems to be bothering me

          7  is that we are giving permission to people to break

          8  the law, and I have a problem with that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes, I would

         10  respectfully disagree that this is a vague piece of

         11  legislation. It's actually the original legislation,

         12  and the only thing I am doing is trying to clarify

         13  that when in a provision of a lease signed by two

         14  human beings is waived, it is waived for the

         15  fulfillment of that contract. And the fact of the

         16  matter is you do not create a lease or a contract

         17  with a cat or a dog, you create it with a person.

         18                 So, with all due respect to my

         19  opening statement, I'm not sure that I ever, if I

         20  did, then I was mistaken, talked about my

         21  interpretation of a waiver being from the courts. I

         22  believe that was Elinor, who spoke after me, talking

         23  about how the courts have interpreted the law.

         24                 My issue has been that once a

         25  provision is waived, and I am an attorney, there I
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          2  don't believe a provision in any law that says I

          3  didn't mean to waive that, let me try it again.

          4                 And I think that that has been my

          5  problem with this legislation from the beginning,

          6  and that's really been my issue from the beginning.

          7  I just never understood how you waived it with a

          8  person, but when a pet dies, it's gone.

          9                 MR. RICCI: That's what I tried to

         10  explain in my testimony. It's not an outright

         11  waiver. It's not that an owner has said, okay, I see

         12  the pet and it's okay. That's a waiver. The way the

         13  courts have interpreted this law has said that if a

         14  contractor, who has nothing to do with the owner, is

         15  not his employee, an outside contractor, a plumber,

         16  a plasterer, the helper of that plumber comes in and

         17  sees evidence of the pet, that is now considered a

         18  waiver.

         19                 So, I was making the example that

         20  just as you said the justification for this bill is

         21  a court decision that's happened since the original

         22  passage, I'm telling you that there's been a court

         23  decision since the original passage, that's made the

         24  waiver really not what it was intended to be.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. I don't
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          2  know if I keep talking about the court cases, but

          3  that's all right, again, it just seems that it's the

          4  original piece of legislation again, and that is an

          5  issue that we may need to deal with in the future.

          6  But it is not legislation in front of us.

          7                 MR. HOFFMAN: No, I'm sorry. We're not

          8  talking about 27-20091. We're talking about Intro.

          9  189, okay? Intro. 189 is taking this piece of

         10  possibly poorly legislation and making it worse.

         11                 It's one thing if we're talking about

         12  a waiver for one animal. And I'll go back to the

         13  turtle, to a dog, okay? You know, the 90-day period

         14  is fine for that animal. The owner chose not to do

         15  anything about it because the turtle was fine in the

         16  house and nobody was bothering, he wasn't bothering

         17  anybody else in the building. But now we're talking

         18  about starting the process all over again, it's a

         19  different type of animal, without giving that owner

         20  a building who has a no pet policy any chance to do

         21  anything about it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

         23  James?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Hoffman, in

         25  your statement you indicated that you manage all
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          2  different types of buildings in New York City, both

          3  large and small, residential rentals, cooperatives

          4  and condominiums, correct?

          5                 MR. HOFFMAN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: How many

          7  residents have had turtles that have died and then

          8  subsequently went on to get dogs?

          9                 MR. HOFFMAN: You know what? It hasn't

         10  been an issue that has been brought up yet because

         11  Intro. 189 is not in existence. So, I haven't had

         12  any tenants who have come to me and have said I need

         13  to replace. I've had people who brought a dog in in

         14  a no pet building, and I've had to remind them that

         15  they couldn't have a pet, or most of the time

         16  they've asked me first and I've had to remind them.

         17  But certainly this opens a pandora's box of

         18  everybody and their uncle in a no pet building

         19  saying to me, I've had a turtle, you know I've had a

         20  turtle, now I want a dog.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So basically

         22  the answer to my question is there has been no

         23  instance where individuals have had turtles who have

         24  died where they went on to get dogs, correct?

         25                 MR. HOFFMAN: You instances, the
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          2  answer is, with all due respect, that it has not

          3  come up yet because the law right now has not had

          4  any bearing on that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And let me ask

          6  this question to the panel. The issue that I see

          7  that keeps coming up again is the question with

          8  regards to open and notorious, and providing

          9  notification. And you had, I believe the suggestion

         10  earlier was that the notification be certified. But

         11  I do know that in the law it requires notification

         12  on a number of issues. One that comes to mind are

         13  windowguards. Individuals who basically have

         14  children who are under the age of seven. It doesn't

         15  require that the notice be certified, it's just a

         16  written notice.

         17                 MR. RICCI: It's a proof of mailing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: A proof of

         19  mailing.

         20                 MR. RICCI: I had a hand in helping

         21  write the window guard law as well as the lead law,

         22  and the issue that's always come up is, there is a

         23  tendency in New York City for tenants to not accept

         24  certified mail. It's not the same for owners. They

         25  accept certified mail. So, if the notification is
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          2  going the other way, I don't think it makes much

          3  difference.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 We've been joined by Council Member

          8  Gale Brewer.

          9                 And, so, we need to take a vote on

         10  the awning bill.

         11                 MS. NASSER: Council Member Brewer,

         12  with regard to proposed Intro. 272-A, how do you

         13  vote?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

         15  am going to vote no. I understand that there is a

         16  concern about owners who have an awning that is

         17  there, and that one shouldn't be saddled with

         18  numerous summonses, but in my district there is a

         19  real interest in keeping the awnings as simple as

         20  possible, and so I will vote no on this particular

         21  legislation. Thank you.

         22                 MS. NASSER: The vote now stands at

         23  seven in the affirmative, two in the negative and no

         24  abstentions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.
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          2                 Dr. Deborah Tanzer, Susan Cohen, Dr.

          3  John Sangiorgio.

          4                 Do you want to start? Just identify

          5  yourself?

          6                 DR. COHEN: Hi. I'm Dr. Susan Cohen.

          7  For the last 22 years I've been the Director of

          8  Counseling at the Animal Medical Center. I deal with

          9  people whose pets are dying, and I'm very grateful

         10  that you all showed up to hear us today, and I want

         11  to talk to you just briefly about why I think the

         12  urban environment really makes the bond between

         13  people and pets more intense and therefore why grief

         14  is more intense.

         15                 New York City is a City of

         16  immigrants. People leave their homes and families to

         17  come here to build a new life. When they get here

         18  they feel lonely so they get themselves a pet. And

         19  they and their pet usually move into much smaller

         20  space than they were used to out in Ohio or wherever

         21  they came from, and the pet is always there. It's a

         22  part of every aspect of their life, and very often

         23  New York people work part time from home, they're

         24  either a home-maker, or they telecommute. So, now

         25  the pet is entwined in every aspect of their life.
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          2  It's not just a little something to keep you

          3  company. It's a part of everything you do.

          4                 So you get this pet to fight off

          5  loneliness, and then you discover you make friends.

          6  You go outside, you walk the dog, you get activity,

          7  you get exercise, and if you have a pet in your

          8  home, the neighborhood kids come to visit you. So,

          9  now it's not just your relationship, it builds other

         10  relationships, it builds community, it ties people

         11  together.

         12                 Sometimes people get pets for

         13  protection, even little pets, even bunnies I've

         14  heard and cats will alert you if there's somebody in

         15  the hall, so people feel safer and even the

         16  neighbors feel safer and even the neighbors feel

         17  safer.

         18                 People in New York have different

         19  kinds of families than they did in the old days, all

         20  kinds of combinations of people living together, and

         21  a lot of people living alone, and many fewer

         22  children. So, the pet is a very integral part of

         23  their life.

         24                 Now, it makes sense that if a pet

         25  does that much for you, when it dies you are losing
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          2  a lot because you have many of your social and

          3  emotional eggs in the pet basket. You lose

          4  companionship, protection, social contact exercise,

          5  an opportunity to nurture, a certain structure for

          6  your life and your family.

          7                 When you lose a pet and you walk down

          8  the street, if you've had a dog, people don't even

          9  recognize you. They don't know your name all of a

         10  sudden, because they knew your dog and your dog's

         11  name. You are now cut off from all kinds of friends

         12  and activities that you used to be involved with.

         13  You had no reason to go home from work because there

         14  was perhaps nobody there waiting for you to get home

         15  and walk them or feed them or take care of them.

         16                 People grieve for their pets at least

         17  as much as they grieve for people, often more, and

         18  maybe because our relationships are a little

         19  simpler, and you grieve for a long time. And I hear

         20  all the time in our pet loss support group people's

         21  fears, because not only have they lost this loving

         22  companion, they know they can't get another one

         23  because the rules have been changed. They moved into

         24  a pet-friendly building, and now suddenly it's not.

         25                 In any other aspect of our life, if
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          2  we lost a spouse or a child, a partner, we could

          3  choose to rebuild our life. Here the law prevents

          4  you from rebuilding your life, because it prevents

          5  you from getting another pet.

          6                 So, I'm asking that you please pass

          7  this bill and not make people choose between their

          8  health and happiness and their home.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 DR. TANZER: My name is Dr. Deborah

         11  Tanzer. I am a New York State licensed psychologist.

         12  I do research, writing, lecturing and TV appearances

         13  on the relationship between humans and animals, and

         14  I have a clinical practice in psychotherapy. I am

         15  here to speak on behalf of Intro. 189, because of

         16  the enormous benefits that having companion animals

         17  confers on thousands of members of our community,

         18  whether they live in rentals, co-ops, condominiums

         19  or other forms of housing.

         20                 The scientific research literature is

         21  abundant and clear, showing that having companion

         22  animals provides huge benefits to all people,

         23  including and especially seniors. The clinical

         24  literature and experience of myself and others is

         25  equally clear. Companion animals have been found to
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          2  reduce stress, improve health and increase people's

          3  feelings of well-being.

          4                 Major physical benefits result from

          5  having a companion animal. Cardiovascular benefits

          6  have been documented, including significant lowering

          7  of blood pressure, lower trigliceride levels and

          8  higher rates of survival after heart attacks.

          9                 Relaxation of arthritic conditions

         10  has been found and positive effects has been shown

         11  on immune system functioning, which in turn is

         12  related to vulnerability, to cancer, and other

         13  diseases.

         14                 Having companion animals has been

         15  shown to correlate with shorter hospital stays and

         16  lesser need to enter the health care system.

         17                 Psychological benefits for all

         18  people, including and especially seniors, have also

         19  been scientifically documented.

         20                 Companion animals provide

         21  companionship, closeness, love, pleasure, joy,

         22  comfort and major calming effect.

         23                 In addition, in a City like New York

         24  where far too many people, again, especially

         25  seniors, experience tremendous loneliness and
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          2  isolation in their lives, companion animals are a

          3  critical resource to alleviate this problem.

          4                 Many companion animals or someone to

          5  talk to, a best friend, and all too often, a

          6  senior's only friend. Indeed, one study has shown

          7  that 70 percent consider their animal their only

          8  friend.

          9                 For seniors, companion animals are

         10  vital in other ways. They provide a critical sense

         11  of purpose, of usefulness, a role and an identity.

         12  These are especially important for seniors who in

         13  the normal lifecycle lose spouses, friends, children

         14  to care for and professional and job satisfactions.

         15                 In the face of such multiple losses,

         16  having companion animals allows them to continue the

         17  vital function of providing care and nurturance

         18  (sic) and the identity and self-esteem that come

         19  from this care-giving.

         20                 The feeling of uselessness,

         21  helplessness, and hopelessness that afflict far too

         22  many of our senior population are thus mitigated, as

         23  are the concomitant negative affect of these

         24  feelings on the immune system.

         25                 Stress, depression and anxiety are
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          2  far less likely to appear. Companion animals have

          3  motivating affects, again, especially for seniors.

          4  They get up in the morning, their time and their day

          5  are structured, organized, and used. They are

          6  providers of food, water, nurturance, care and love.

          7                 Companion animals have vital

          8  socializing affects for people especially with dogs

          9  and especially seniors --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Could you sum

         11  up, please?

         12                 DR. TANZER: -- Get outside more and

         13  interact with others and enter the community.

         14                 And, finally, the loss of a companion

         15  animal, which 189 speaks to directly, is also a

         16  critical issue. This causes a trauma in itself with

         17  demonstrative negative, physical and psychological

         18  effects, the grieving period may have these effects

         19  too. The benefits from having a new companion animal

         20  to help with the grieving are denied.

         21                 The negative effects will be

         22  multiplied and the immune system and the psyche are

         23  again at stake.

         24                 Finally, the loss of an animal is in

         25  some ways harder for people to cope with in the loss
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          2  of a person, because there is so little social

          3  support for their grief.

          4                 People grieving are often considered

          5  crazy for what is very normal caring and grief. They

          6  hide their grief, making the physical and

          7  psychological affects worse.

          8                 For these reasons, too, being denied

          9  a new animal is a harmful and damaging thing to do,

         10  and Intro 89 is very important to pass.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 DR. SANGIORGIO: My name is John

         13  Sangiorgio. I'm a veterinarian. I practice on Staten

         14  Island. I'm a member of the Executive Board of the

         15  Veterinary Medical Association of New York City, and

         16  today I'm speaking on their behalf.

         17                 The veterinary medical association of

         18  New York City represents over 200 practicing

         19  veterinarians in the City.

         20                 The veterinarians of the City join

         21  animal lovers in giving our support to Intro. 189,

         22  and we urge the City Council representatives to join

         23  us in the support.

         24                 I was fortunate enough to be present

         25  at the December hearings of 2003 when this was
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          2  called Intro. 380, and there were several things

          3  brought up at those hearings that I wanted to

          4  address.

          5                 Several people brought up about

          6  nuisance, and vicious animals, and there is already

          7  a law in place, New York State Law, NYCLS,

          8  agricultural markets 121, last revised in 2003.

          9                 There is also several laws in the New

         10  York City Board of Health.

         11                 Just before you brought up what the

         12  definition of a pet is and the Board of Health has a

         13  list of animals that you can and cannot have inside

         14  the City, and I'll get that list for you. What are

         15  the social benefits of having an animal?

         16                 Serpelle (phonetic) in his 1990 study

         17  found that pet owners have a better psychological

         18  well-being. In Nelson study of 1990, children grow

         19  up to be more nurturing adults. In Anacone

         20  (phonetic) study of 1992, children grow up to be

         21  more empathetic.  In Bergenstein's study in 1989,

         22  children have a higher self-esteem. And in Vivicop

         23  study (phonetic) of 1999, children have a higher

         24  pre-social orientation. So, we can pass a law like

         25  this, otherwise we can put all the kids on Ritalin.
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          2                 What about damages done by animals in

          3  apartment houses? This is also code by agricultural

          4  marketing law number 121? And what about the cost to

          5  the government? Pet owners have 21 percent fewer

          6  doctor visits. This is according to a Medicare study

          7  by Spiegel in 1990. And nursing home costs, daily

          8  nursing home costs drop from $3.81 to $1.18, this is

          9  a the Montague study of 1995.

         10                 And what about cost to the landlords?

         11  In the AVMA study of 1996, half renters have animals

         12  and owners who neglect these consumers miss half of

         13  their market.

         14                 Now, these landlords could just come

         15  to you for another rent increase like they did last

         16  month, seven percent if they don't get it. Okay?

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We don't do

         19  rent increases, the State does. But thank you.

         20                 We have a question. Council Member

         21  Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         23  Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Who is also

         25  from Staten Island.
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          2                 DR. SANGIORGIO: Yes, I know.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The first

          4  witness is?

          5                 DR. COHEN: Susan Cohen.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Dr. Cohen.

          7                 You said that in some instances pet

          8  owners grieve as much, if not more, for their pets

          9  than for other human beings. Are we talking Fido and

         10  Spot relative to my ex-wife and mother-in-law, or?

         11                 DR. COHEN: Yes, you could look at it

         12  that way.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes, that's an

         14  amazing statement.

         15                 And the second witness began toe

         16  explain why that might be, because people look at

         17  you and say it was a dog, get over it, and you can't

         18  -- but that's kind of on face value a tough

         19  statement for me to accept.

         20                 DR. COHEN: I've been doing this work

         21  for 22 years now. I'm a certified social worker, I

         22  listen to people all the time. And they're

         23  embarrassed that they are grieving more for their

         24  dog than for their family member. But, you know,

         25  sometimes it makes sense, we have complicated
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          2  relationships with other people, and while a lot of

          3  us find them rich and satisfying, they're not always

          4  so much fun. Dogs, cats, birds, usually won't hurt

          5  you.

          6                 Sometimes you have family members

          7  that have moved away from you. You know, they moved

          8  to Florida 20 years ago, they've been sick for a

          9  long time, they're in pain or suffering, so on some

         10  level their passing is a relief.

         11                 When you have somebody who has been

         12  living with you, sleeping on your bed, keeping you

         13  company, not giving you grief because you put on 20

         14  pounds or lost money in the stock market, that is a

         15  simpler, but sometimes more positive relationship,

         16  and it's a more intimate and immediate relationship,

         17  if your family was far away. So, to me it's not

         18  surprising that people, and I hear it all the time,

         19  grieve more, in some cases for a particular pet than

         20  a particular person - your ex-wife --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I don't have an

         22  ex-wife, just for the record.

         23                 DR. COHEN: One's ex-wife. And most

         24  people grieve --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Because if my
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          2  mother is watching on Crosswalks, she might think I

          3  have a secret life somewhere.

          4                 DR. COHEN: Right. Most people grieve

          5  for days or weeks, but there are people who grieve

          6  for years, and part of their grief is aggravated by

          7  the knowledge that the rules in the building have

          8  changed, but they can't get another pet if they want

          9  to.

         10                 If they lose a spouse, and some day

         11  down the road they meet another wonderful person,

         12  they can get married, they can have another child,

         13  they can get another job. Here, the way the rule is

         14  being interpreted, prevents them from rebuilding

         15  that part of their life, and it isn't -- you know,

         16  we talked a lot about seniors and people with health

         17  problems and mental health problems. That's very

         18  important. But it's everybody, it's a normal healthy

         19  thing to be involved with nature.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, would you

         21  say that an individual, I guess all other things the

         22  same, an individual who is 35 years old, is impacted

         23  the same way that an individual who is a senior

         24  citizen?

         25                 DR. COHEN: No, everybody's
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          2  relationships are different. And it's not the

          3  object, it's not whether it's grandma or a snake,

          4  it's --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But you don't

          6  have to be a senior citizen to have --

          7                 DR. COHEN: No, you don't have to be a

          8  senior citizen. You could be 35 years old and

          9  gorgeous and have a job and friends and have had a

         10  crumby childhood and have just broken up with a

         11  relationship, and all kinds of things that would set

         12  you up for a very intense time, and my argument is

         13  that I think living in an urban environment, I think

         14  being involved with animals is a natural biological

         15  reaction, but I think living in an urban environment

         16  intensifies this relationship.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         18                 DR. TANZER: May I comment on that?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Go ahead.

         20                 DR. TANZER: Because you kind of

         21  addressed it to me a little bit.

         22                 I think that seniors are more likely

         23  to be the ones affected by the grief issue that this

         24  bill addresses, because just because of numbers

         25  they're more likely to have an older pet who dies
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          2  after a number of years than are younger people.

          3                 So, I think the senior issue, you

          4  know, is very important there. But I think

          5  relatedly, and nobody really mentioned it, I think I

          6  should have perhaps, it's not just the effect when

          7  an animal dies and there's the grief that would be

          8  helped by the passage of this bill, all the anxiety

          9  beforehand. When somebody knows that their pet is

         10  old or sick, and is going to die and may die and am

         11  I going to be able to have another one or not?

         12  That's a tremendous issue for a lot of people

         13  because they're afraid that they won't be allowed

         14  the replacement animal, and that colors a lot of

         15  people's lives. I know that professionally.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         17  Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         19  Member Nelson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 Personally speaking, obviously, to me

         23  there wouldn't be tremendous comparison, God forbid,

         24  the loss of a child, but I could tell you, you can

         25  mention to some people, I would admit a lot of
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          2  people with the loss of an ex-wife or a loss of an

          3  ex-husband there would be no comparison whatsoever

          4  either in another arena. But on a personal basis, I

          5  can tell my colleagues, I have almost always had an

          6  animal, had four dogs at the same time, as a matter

          7  of fact, and it's an hysterical experience when you

          8  lose one and you go through the process of going

          9  through an awful lot of money, and you have no

         10  choice, you know, this is a relative, a family

         11  member. And the grieving process really is there and

         12  the initial shock is there, even though the animal

         13  could be sick for a year, but still when it happens

         14  you lose yourself.

         15                 So, if that would help some of my

         16  colleagues understand how this could happen. To many

         17  people it's totally absurd, and you are embarrassed

         18  because people have responded to our losses at times

         19  like they've tried to be nice about it, you could

         20  tell they were not that fathoming this experience.

         21  You have it or you don't in most cases. But I would

         22  think a lot of these people who don't quite

         23  understand it, if they ever did have an animal in

         24  the house, that may be the only way they could

         25  understand the situation.

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 DR. COHEN: There are a lot of

          3  converts out there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          5                 I just wanted to add that, Madam

          6  Chair.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. We

          9  also need to take one more vote. We've been joined

         10  by Council Member Robert Jackson, who will be voting

         11  on the awning bill.

         12                 MS. NASSER: Council Member Jackson,

         13  with regard to proposed Intro. 272-A, how do you

         14  vote?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I vote aye.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         17  sir.

         18                 Thank the three of you.

         19                 DR. TANZER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I just want

         21  to remind those of you who may not have been here

         22  when I said it, at 1:00 this meeting will be

         23  adjourned, and we still have many folks who want to

         24  testify.

         25                 Sandra Rutherford, Larry Ostraub,
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          2  Janet and Gary Weintraub. Janet and Gary.

          3                 We're taking you together, Mr. And

          4  Mrs. Weintraub, as one person. They're my new

          5  e-mail, my pet pals.

          6                 If you want to start?

          7                 MR. OSTRAUB: Thank you very much,

          8  Councilperson Provenzano, and Melinda Katz and the

          9  other Councilpeople who are involved in this

         10  legislation.

         11                 My name is Larry Ostraub. I'm a New

         12  York resident born and raised here, and I continue

         13  to stay here. I'm speaking on behalf of my pet, a

         14  can terrier by the name of "Waldo." And this has

         15  sort of become Saving Private Waldo, who no longer

         16  lives with me.

         17                 Waldo has a favorite expression, one

         18  of which being, you know, if you're sitting in a hen

         19  house, it doesn't make you a chicken. And listening

         20  to the previous testimony of both the co-op

         21  representatives and the representatives of building

         22  owners, my eyes almost glazed over at the very

         23  thought of it.

         24                 These people representing 175,000

         25  members in one case, 100,000 members in another
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          2  case, why has it never occurred to them, including

          3  the representatives of owners of rental buildings,

          4  who were quote, trying to protect their tenants, who

          5  prefer not to be in the environment with a dog or a

          6  cat, why has it never occurred to these people who

          7  have substantial resources to go to AC Neilson or

          8  some other research company, and get some research

          9  done which would indicate the feelings of their,

         10  quote, constituency, unquotes, as to whether pets

         11  are acceptable in buildings over a long-term basis.

         12  And I think the answer is readily apparent. They may

         13  already anticipate what the results of that type of

         14  research may indicate, and that's why it's not being

         15  done.

         16                 I was further amazed at the fact that

         17  they never really paid attention at the previous

         18  hearings when it was clearly testified by eminent

         19  researchers in the field that the percentage of

         20  damage done to buildings by pets is infinitesimal,

         21  when compared to the damage done by children and

         22  other residents of these properties.

         23                 So, that being taken as an opening,

         24  let's look at this statistically.

         25                 As representatives, you are really
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          2  swimming in an ocean, and the ocean can be defined

          3  in terms of the number of licensed dog owners in

          4  this case, in the contiguous area of New York City,

          5  according to the Health Department, 125,000 of them,

          6  as individuals, are licensed. If we look at the fact

          7  that the Health Department states one in four people

          8  license their pets today, which is unfortunate, then

          9  this gives you a population of approximately 500,000

         10  people, the minimum universe of individuals.

         11                 Now, we know from the census data

         12  there are 2.3 people in every household. Therefore,

         13  what we're looking at is a million plus people. Now,

         14  it will be facetious of me to say that this is the

         15  total amount of people that are going to be directly

         16  impacted by this legislation, of course it's not

         17  going to be. But it shows the environment in which

         18  you are functioning right now, and the potential of

         19  the number of people being impacted.

         20                 Now, granted, the number of people

         21  appearing in landlord and tenant court, is

         22  considerably smaller than the universe of people --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Can we ask

         24  you to sum up?

         25                 MR. OSTRAUB: Yes.
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          2                 Than the universe of people who are

          3  being affected by this. So, to sum up, what we're

          4  really looking at is the classic case of interest

          5  versus numbers, and the interest of this case are

          6  not being deprived of their rights, because this

          7  will be back in the legislative process, for their

          8  abatements, rent increases and everything else they

          9  require, the numbers of the people who are going to

         10  be actually taken care of by you if this is passed,

         11  and what you're simply doing is the right thing by

         12  improving this bill. And thank you for giving me the

         13  opportunity to testify.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         15                 MS. RUTHERFORD: I am Sandra

         16  Rutherford. I'm a rent-control tenant who has kept

         17  pets in my apartment since 1971. It is of utmost

         18  importance to me that I am able to continue to have

         19  pets after my present dog "Michelle" passes on. She

         20  is now 12 years old.

         21                 I have been a tenant advocate for the

         22  past 20 years, and a former tenant advisory

         23  committee member to the DHCR Commissioner under

         24  former Governor Cuomo.

         25                 My landlord gave me no trouble during
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          2  all the years I had pets, until the tenants in my

          3  building arranged a meeting to file a reduction of

          4  services complaints. In retaliation to this

          5  activism, I was served a notice to cure dated

          6  October 29th, 1993, after having sent the landlord a

          7  letter on October 25th, 1993, informing him of our

          8  right to hold a meeting in the common area of the

          9  building.

         10                 Later in January 22nd, 1997, I

         11  received another notice to cure, after the landlord

         12  lost his application to restore rent issued by DHCR

         13  issued on January 6th, 1997.

         14                 The landlord was then informed by the

         15  tenant's attorney at that time that the notice was

         16  construed to be harassment because I am a tenant

         17  leader in the building.

         18                 Our attorney now representing the

         19  tenants in the landlords appeals of the reduction

         20  services complaint informs me that as the present

         21  law stands, it would be expected that my landlord

         22  will retaliate to disallow me in particular, to have

         23  another pet.

         24                 This would be an intolerable

         25  situation to me.
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          2                 As a senior citizen, I have nowhere

          3  to go if I have to move because my apartment has an

          4  affordable rent. This would be a dilemma of critical

          5  proportion.

          6                 I also do volunteer work with my

          7  girlfriend in the past five years for a shelter in

          8  Flushing, Queens, called Animal Haven.

          9                 We see from personal knowledge that

         10  animals are frequently brought in because owners are

         11  moving and the landlord will not permit pets.

         12                 We also hear many times how people

         13  want to adopt a pet, but cannot do so because they

         14  checked with their landlord and told that no pets

         15  are allowed. As pet owners my girlfriend and I are

         16  very conscientious about properly maintaining pets

         17  living with other tenants around us. So long as they

         18  are properly kept, it is not understood by us how a

         19  pet could be a liability for neighbors and the

         20  landlord. People need pets and the pets need us.

         21                 They certainly make for kinder

         22  societies, so please amend the laws in favor of

         23  keeping the pets.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         25                 MS. WEINTRAUB: Hi, everybody. Thank
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          2  you for having this hearing. I want to thank Mary

          3  Max in particular for her tireless efforts and her

          4  love and Elinor Molbegott, the one who made this

          5  happen.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please say

          7  your name, Mrs. Weintraub.

          8                 MS. WEINTRAUB: I'm Janet Weintraub,

          9  and I was relatively young when 30 years ago my

         10  husband and I moved into our building, and after

         11  four failed in vitro attempts and several years of

         12  trying to adopt, unsuccessfully, we got a puppy. We

         13  got buddy. He was our baby. We got cookie to keep

         14  him company, to be his nanny and his sister.

         15  Everyone in the building knew. Everybody saw us. The

         16  owner's son lived in the building. Everyone knew.

         17                 Anyway, there is so much sorrow in

         18  this world. Look around, I mean it's right here in

         19  this room. And I look at you and how busy you are

         20  and you worked late last night and you're trying to

         21  make this City a better place, and I really

         22  appreciate that, and I understand you're busy.

         23  Sorry. My heart can't fathom why something as

         24  important as this bill is taking so long to pass.

         25                 It's been since 1997, and to some
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          2  people a pet is their only companionship, their only

          3  source of love and joy. There's too much sorrow in

          4  this world and you have the power to take some of it

          5  away by voting yes to 189. Please do. Please.

          6                 And I just want to read something

          7  that I wrote when I was here last time.

          8                 If you have children, grandchildren,

          9  God bless you. We should all be so lucky. Not all of

         10  us have been, so we have dogs. You might think the

         11  two don't equate, but I believe they do. Dogs, like

         12  children, give us joy and laughter. They make us

         13  families, our houses homes, they give us a comfort

         14  in difficult times like these, get us out of the

         15  house, help us interact. It's about love. It's the

         16  same thing. The City is moving toward a very humane

         17  no kill pet policy supported by this very Council.

         18  But if people can't have them, where will they go?

         19  That pets provide unconditional love, joy and

         20  laughter is a good thing, and not just for their

         21  owners. Check out the children watching outside the

         22  dog run some time, or watch the way people smile

         23  when they pass a cut dog on the street. A City

         24  without dogs is unthinkable. It's unloving, it's

         25  heartless and it's cold.
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          2                 What more can I say? I can tell you,

          3  I can't even read this part, that we're on our third

          4  dog in 20 years, that when we moved into our

          5  building pets weren't an issue, but now that we're

          6  on the verge of losing our dog, Chester, to cancer,

          7  they tell us we can't have another, and we can't

          8  afford to move.

          9                 MR. WEINTRAUB: Hi. My name is Gary

         10  Weintraub. When Janet spoke those words, we had

         11  Chester to go home to. Today we don't. Sorry. He

         12  passed away on June 5th. We miss him so much. He

         13  gave us a reason to get up in the morning. We miss

         14  kids wanting to pet him and people smiling when they

         15  see him and asking what kind of dog he was. We would

         16  meet nice people that way. We don't just miss

         17  Chester, we miss one another interacting with him,

         18  the silly joyful people we were when we had him.

         19  That seems to have died with him.

         20                 You can't bring Chester back, but you

         21  can give us hope that we can have that kind of love

         22  and joy back in our lives again. And, soon, please.

         23  We need it so much. So many people do. In a letter

         24  that is in the package you go, dated January 25th,

         25  2000, our then Councilman Speaker Miller wrote in
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          2  reference to this bill when it was 203, I quote, "In

          3  fact, I am a co-sponsor of that legislation," and

          4  then he went on to conclude, "please rest assured

          5  that the bill has my support, and I look forward to

          6  voting for it when it comes before the Council this

          7  year or next.

          8                 This bill has been 203, 380 and now

          9  189. Too many people have been hurting too long.

         10  Please vote yes and make the numbers stop here.

         11                 I would just like to add something

         12  that's not on the papers you have. Open and

         13  notorious seems to be a big issue with the

         14  opposition. It's come up over and over.

         15                 But that was the law, and I don't

         16  know how many people illegally or illegally have

         17  gotten their pets. I know we did it legally.

         18  Everybody knew everybody in the building had pets.

         19                 And to punish everybody in one broad

         20  stroke when we don't know what those numbers are,

         21  doesn't seem fair.

         22                 This bill is about the waiver, not

         23  the open and notorious. That's in the past. It seems

         24  to me that that should be a new bill going forward,

         25  defining it, getting -- if we would have known, we
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          2  would have gotten the landlord's permission on a

          3  written piece of paper before doing it.

          4                 Just the same way we can't get a dog

          5  and we're not going to get a dog now unless this

          6  bill is passed because of the ramifications.

          7                 MS. WEINTRAUB: No, that's not true.

          8  That's not true. We will. We have to.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Don't tell us

         10  on the record.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Can I?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just a quick

         14  comment. I want to thank you for coming out and

         15  sharing your stories.

         16                 I think that what needs to be said

         17  for the record is that the majority of pet owners in

         18  the City of New York that live in apartment

         19  buildings are really just like you, and I was very

         20  uncomfortable I think with the aspect of some of the

         21  testimony here today, basically intimating that much

         22  of this is done behind closed doors, and snuck

         23  around, and all this kind of stuff. I don't believe

         24  that to be true, and I also was commenting to some

         25  of my colleagues, that open and notorious is a term
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          2  of art in the legal dictionary used in almost every

          3  aspect of every law in the United Stated of America.

          4  It is a very common expression which has legal

          5  implications. And is clearly defined legally in so

          6  many different ways. So, I do want to thank you.

          7  And, again, just for the record, I'd like to clearly

          8  state it is my belief that most folks who live in

          9  apartment buildings, have pets, are open about it,

         10  are proud about it, show the pictures to everyone

         11  that they possibly can show, becomes part of their

         12  family, becomes something they bring out down to the

         13  lobby and hang out with, and it becomes part of the

         14  apartment dwelling.

         15                 So, I want to thank you for sharing

         16  your stories.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Diane West, Robert Katz, Michael

         20  McKee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mike, you

         22  want to start?

         23                 MR. McKEE: Surely. Good afternoon,

         24  Councilwoman Provenzano, Council Member Brewer and

         25  Katz and Jackson and I think Nelson.
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          2                 My name is Michael McKee, I'm the

          3  Associate Director of the New York State Tenants and

          4  Neighbors Coalition, a statewide membership

          5  organization that advocates and lobbies for tenants'

          6  rights in affordable housing.

          7                 Tenants and neighbors unequivocally

          8  and strongly supports Intro. 189, urges that the

          9  Housing Committee act quickly to pass this bill.

         10                 This issue has lingered for far too

         11  many years. All this bill does is clarify the

         12  original intent of the Council in the early 1980s

         13  and I think it's pretty pathetic when the opposition

         14  has to raise extraneous issues why, you know,

         15  questioning the meaning of open and notorious,

         16  talking about snakes and tortoises, it's pretty

         17  pathetic if that's the best arguments they can come

         18  up with against this bill, which is a simple bill,

         19  and I think clarifies the intent of the original

         20  legislation.

         21                 We were very much involved in the

         22  enactment in the original pet law in the early

         23  1980s. I know most of you were not in the Council or

         24  involved with the City Council at that time, but I

         25  remember going to court, in the days when I used to

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  go to Housing Court with tenants, with pet owners

          3  facing eviction, before the pet law was enacted, and

          4  I remember two tenants in particular who actually

          5  gave up their apartments because they could not give

          6  up their pet, now that is really inhumane.

          7                 And I think that it's high time that

          8  this Committee passed this bill out of Committee and

          9  put it on the floor and pass it, to clarify the law.

         10                 I want to say a word also about

         11  co-ops and shareholders. The organizations that come

         12  before you representing co-ops do not represent

         13  co-op shareholders. They represent boards of

         14  directors. And, frankly, some of them are worse than

         15  landlords, in the dictatorial nature they function.

         16  And I believe the shareholders deserve as much

         17  protection as anyone else from arbitrary actions and

         18  policies adopted by the boards of directors which

         19  are not in general models of democracy, and, you

         20  know, the word co-op, in my view, in many cases is a

         21  misnomer.

         22                 So, I would strongly urge you to pass

         23  this bill quickly, get it out of Committee, and

         24  let's get it on the floor, and let's get it into

         25  law.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 Mr. Katz.

          5                 MR. KATZ: Before I start my

          6  statement, I think that as an attorney I have an

          7  obligation to inform this Council that the Seaward

          8  Park holding case which was bandied about by the

          9  opposition did not deal with a plumber. My

         10  recollection is it dealt with a security guard, a

         11  contractor security guard, whose business was

         12  observation. And that's why the Court of Appeals

         13  reversed, or affirmed the Appellate Division.

         14                 That's the point that I want to make

         15  there. That's very important for you to understand,

         16  that it is not a plumber that came in, or some

         17  extraneous contractor, in which a contractor hired

         18  to observe.

         19                 I appear before you this morning in

         20  my capacity as an attorney and a tenant advocate to

         21  address and support the present pet bill

         22  legislation.

         23                 While I wholly endorse that

         24  legislation, I would ask you to understand that it

         25  is a minimum requirement, in terms of civilized
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          2  treatment of the tenants living in the private

          3  sector. What I mean by this fact, that in the public

          4  sector, under the control of HUD, it has been

          5  recognized as a law for an appreciable period of

          6  time, that every tenant living in public housing has

          7  a right to at least a cat or a dog for a pet.

          8                 The law that I seek out here is law

          9  that was enacted during the Clinton Administration,

         10  and was based on careful study, as to the positive

         11  effects on the health and well-being of the tenant

         12  who owns a pet.

         13                 Moreover, the Council ought to be

         14  aware that the private landlord is not utilizing

         15  this law, restricting pets, in terms of a merit of

         16  the issue, rather we have seen time and time again

         17  that the private sector landlord utilizes this

         18  either to punish a tenant who is perhaps trying to

         19  perform a tenants association. Or to fight off a

         20  rent increase or to get the tenant into court or

         21  holdover, which the tenant does not have the

         22  resources to fight.

         23                 It is a shame, but most of these

         24  cases are settled in the hallway, either by forcing

         25  the tenant to give up a pet, or the apartment. The
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          2  Council should realize that a tenant who wants to

          3  fight for that pet, even though the pet has clearly

          4  lived their for the 90-day period, is going to pay

          5  astronomical legal fees for a holdover trial can run

          6  anywhere from 20- to 40,000 for the tenant's lawyer,

          7  and if by any chance the tenant should lose, the

          8  tenant will also be confronted with paying the legal

          9  fees of the landlord's which is probably double.

         10                 Forget about the tenant who was too

         11  poor to play in this realm. Legal Aid does not

         12  relish taking pet cases, and a tenant who fights a

         13  holdover pro se has very little chance of success,

         14  no matter what the merits are.

         15                 The smartest thing that this Council

         16  could do is to relieve this issue permanently by

         17  enacting permanent regulations, which conform to the

         18  law of the public sector.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Katz.

         21                 Ms. West.

         22                 MS. WEST: Thank you, members of the

         23  Council.

         24                 First off, I just need to thank legal

         25  editorial advisor Karen Copeland, Human Society New
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          2  York Council Elinor Molbecott, Talisha Talervi

          3  (phonetic) at the ASPCA, and Mary Max. The reason

          4  why I have to thank them up front, New York Tails

          5  receives scores of e-mails, phone calls, letters,

          6  faxes, from among their 30,000 readers in New York

          7  who have to choose between their pets and their

          8  apartments due to legal issues raised by their

          9  landlords, and I often have to call upon the

         10  services of these three esteemed legal

         11  representatives to help them.

         12                 The most recent one I got was a woman

         13  who has lived openly with her cats in a rent

         14  controlled Brooklyn apartment, and suddenly in

         15  violation of her no pets lease agreement and is, you

         16  know, has to talk with the lawyer of the landlord.

         17                 I mean, I guess I just wanted to

         18  unscore about this bill, why we are supportive of

         19  it. I mean, this is, it's very legitimate concerns

         20  that are raised by the opposition, nobody wants to

         21  live next to a pet that makes noise or destroys

         22  property or, you know, what have you, and I think

         23  that's why this bill really needs to be passed.

         24                 I think it gives extraordinarily

         25  needed equity to the landlord, as well as
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          2  responsible, conscientious pet owners in New York

          3  City. It's a fair bill, it's a balanced bill. One in

          4  every four of your City Council colleagues, by my

          5  count, is at least sympathetic to it.

          6                 I also wanted to mention the

          7  farther-reaching ramifications of not supporting

          8  this bill. You know, there would be yet another

          9  loophole to, you know, already dwindling affordable

         10  housing market that creates another loophole to kind

         11  of get someone out of there that you don't want in

         12  there, even though they're a responsible pet owner.

         13                 And I mean, the economic impact of

         14  the City hostile to pet owners will be enormous, and

         15  I feel loss of tax revenues, at least 225 practicing

         16  veterinarians within New York City's borders alone,

         17  with support staffs, there's hundreds upon hundreds

         18  of pet stores, large chains like discounts, you're

         19  talking about an industry that employs thousands of

         20  people. And if it's suddenly perceived that this is

         21  not a pet-friendly City, you're really going to be

         22  imperiling a whole industry.

         23                 And, finally, I guess just to sum up.

         24  We're home to the ASPCA. We're home to the Animal

         25  Medical Center. We're home to, you know, the
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          2  fantastic Bronx Zoo, and the New York Aquarium, and

          3  others throughout the City, and, yet, the people who

          4  call this City home, have no legal protection to own

          5  a pet, and to me the irony is incredible.

          6                 So, I humbly suggest that you please

          7  pass this bill. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9                 Thank all of you.

         10                 Linda Cohen Wassong, Susan Friend,

         11  Fern Wood Mitchell. Somebody is missing.

         12                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: My name is Linda

         13  Cohen Wassong, and I'd like to thank you for the

         14  opportunity to speak.

         15                 I am a licensed real estate broker in

         16  this City of New York, and I represent residential

         17  housing.

         18                 In addition, I am the mother of

         19  Tuchini and Sparkle Wassong, never having had my own

         20  children, which I was unable to do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And would you

         22  identify yourself, please. Did you say your name?

         23                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: Linda Cohen

         24  Wassong.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Sorry.
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          2                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: That's okay.

          3                 I also specialize in the practice of

          4  creating a niche for myself in pet-friendly

          5  buildings.

          6                 I represent many people who are

          7  unable to find appropriate housing for them and

          8  their pets, and I respect and understand the no pet

          9  policy. No one should have to live in a building

         10  where they don't want pets and they have the right

         11  to do that.

         12                 I also understand the right of a

         13  human being to have a pet, who they love very much.

         14  And with that said, I also have respect, once again,

         15  for people who need to replace their pets. And as I

         16  said, as the mother of Tuccini and Sparkle Wassong,

         17  I can't go on like the other people did or else I

         18  will just be devastated and not be able to continue

         19  speaking.

         20                 I represent a lot of people who do

         21  have pets and need housing, because it would be

         22  devastating to them to not be able to have a home.

         23                 With all of that said, again, as we

         24  all know, choosing a home, whether rental or

         25  ownership, is one of the biggest decisions each of
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          2  us will have to make in our lives. When deciding

          3  upon a home, we all have priorities. One of those

          4  priorities is location. Another one is obviously

          5  where you can afford to live, and for pet owners it

          6  even then gets to be another decision where they can

          7  possibly live.

          8                 These are at the compromise.

          9                 This is most true, once again, for

         10  pet owners, where they have to not have a pet or

         11  find a particular building, which they have to

         12  search for that will accept the pets.

         13                 There is a limited number of

         14  apartments available to these pet owners, and I will

         15  mention a few. As a representative as a real estate

         16  broker.

         17                 Approximately 50 percent of the

         18  buildings in the City are pet friendly, and most of

         19  these buildings have restrictions regarding pets

         20  making policies and making it difficult for buyers

         21  to find appropriate apartments, such as size, under

         22  20 pounds, under 50 pounds; quantity, possibly

         23  limited to one. Many boards will not review

         24  information regarding the pets until after the buyer

         25  signs the contract.
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          2                 Now the boards require that the pet

          3  be interviewed. This goes on and on and on. Many

          4  buildings restrict different types of pets, and we

          5  understand that.

          6                 In today's world, as we know, and as

          7  many people here have said, pets are considered part

          8  of the family, if not you're only family. In many

          9  cases they're the only person, as many of us refer

         10  to them, that they may have in their life that is at

         11  home with them, that's loving and that gives them a

         12  reason to actually go home at night.

         13                 We live in a City that does not

         14  always provide a real sense of community. We live in

         15  a City where alienation and loneliness --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Could you sum

         17  up, please?

         18                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: Yes.

         19                 I don't have to talk about what other

         20  people have said. But --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's very

         22  good.

         23                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: I don't believe in

         24  having to make somebody choose between a pet and

         25  everything else, and in addition to that, in real
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          2  estate, obviously, if you have to move it's going to

          3  cost you a lot of money, and it's also going to mean

          4  you may not be able to live in the same neighborhood

          5  that you once lived in.

          6                 And in summing up, I will say that I

          7  believe the present law to be inhumane, sorry to say

          8  that, but I believe it to be true, and I believe it

          9  to be non-American. I implore you to pass this law.

         10  Whatever happened to cherry pie and man's best

         11  friend?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         13                 MS. FRIEND: Thank you, City Council,

         14  for giving me the opportunity to speak with you.

         15                 My name is Susan Friend. And my

         16  husband and I have lived in the same building for 28

         17  years, and for the past 26 years, it's a rental,

         18  it's a rent-stabilized apartment, and we have had

         19  two dogs consecutively in that building, and our dog

         20  now is getting on in years and we're very concerned

         21  because he has already had recently told the tenant

         22  it's the dog or -- the tenant replaced a dog, and he

         23  had told the tenant it's the apartment or the dog

         24  and the tenant had to leave.

         25                 I had come prepared to give you some
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          2  background which a lot of people have covered on

          3  research by different institutions, Sloan Kettering,

          4  and many institutions as to the value of the dog,

          5  but there was one report that had not been covered

          6  and I thought this was interesting. This is the 1981

          7  research report that says, and I quote, the report

          8  recorded that pet owners scored higher than

          9  non-owners on measures of responsibility,

         10  dependability, nurturing helpfulness, benevolence,

         11  lack of egotism and self-centeredness. These are

         12  certainly neighbors that I would like to live among.

         13  I thought that was an interesting report. I

         14  understand that there is some tenant objections, to

         15  the ideas that dogs may create unnecessary, noise,

         16  dirt and smells. I think that that's an offensive

         17  remark because I think the tenants themselves do a

         18  very good job of it.

         19                 We have instances of tenants that

         20  don't put the trash down the chute, therefore

         21  subject to roaches and possibly vermin, or tenants

         22  that have left smelly Pamper diapers in the trash

         23  room, we have tenants that treat the hallways and

         24  the lobbies as if it was a playground. I live on a

         25  floor where there is a tenant that likes to leave a
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          2  set of toys out for his children, and when he comes

          3  home at the end of the day, he plays in the hallway

          4  with the children and we hear the noise as if it was

          5  a playground.

          6                 There is someone else who has play

          7  dates. There are six strollers lined up in the

          8  hallway, and the children are playing for several

          9  hours. I work from the home office, does this mean

         10  that we're supposed to have an apartment with no

         11  children? I don't think that that's the intent.

         12                 New York Times had an idea, an

         13  editorial awhile about perhaps we should have a

         14  limit of a 40-pound dog. I think that anybody that

         15  knows breeds of dogs would know that this is

         16  extraordinarily ill-informed. It's the tendency that

         17  the smaller the breed, and I have nothing against

         18  small dogs, although we have large ones, but the

         19  smaller the breed, the tendency is for those animals

         20  to be a little bit more high strung and do more

         21  barking than the quiet larger dogs.

         22                 New York is known for its energy,

         23  it's can do attitude and it's tolerance. We're

         24  tolerant of many religions, races and lifestyles, be

         25  it heterosexual, homosexual, bi, transgender, are we
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          2  really intolerant of dogs?

          3                 With all the benefits that dogs bring

          4  to our lives, it is incomprehensible that we should

          5  be denied to enjoy a companionship and the ability

          6  to share our home with a dog. I implore you to do

          7  the right thing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9                 Stay, please. Council Member Brewer

         10  has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Hi.

         12                 I have a question regarding the real

         13  estate. I support the bill and congratulate the

         14  prime sponsor, Melinda Katz.

         15                 One of the questions I have is, when

         16  you are obviously selling or renting an apartment,

         17  what kind of response do you get from the

         18  management?

         19                 I mean, to me it is a very simple

         20  issue. Most owners take care of their pets, and this

         21  is not something that we'd be spending a lot of time

         22  on, you know, but this is New York and we will

         23  continue to do so.

         24                 But the question is, if you are in a

         25  building that has a policy or doesn't have a policy,
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          2  in some cases is not as clear, how do you approach

          3  it, and do you get real resistance from management?

          4  Or is there something that perhaps the overall

          5  agencies that are umbrella groups for real estate

          6  are stating is a bigger problem than what it really

          7  is? What is your sort of daily interaction with the

          8  management in terms of that, as opposed to what

          9  we're hearing today?

         10                 MS. COHEN WASSONG: Let's talk about

         11  condos specifically. We all know that the bylaws

         12  change constantly, and from one day to the other it

         13  might change based upon the economy. When you've got

         14  a great economy, no inventory and people are dying

         15  and spending an enormous amount of money to buy an

         16  apartment, why should they sell to someone who has a

         17  95 pound dog, as opposed to people who will pay the

         18  same amount?

         19                 In addition to that, if the economy

         20  was a lot slower, and the apartments weren't selling

         21  that well, they may decide that they'll accept pets

         22  into their building, or larger pets, or whatever it

         23  might be.

         24                 As someone who is specializing in

         25  this, the laws, the bylaws, really are not specific.
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          2  You know, except they say 40 pounds, 30 pounds, this

          3  sort of thing.

          4                 Okay, that's pretty specific, but if

          5  they say pet friendly, which most do, well, I just

          6  had to find -- for the president of a financial

          7  international corporation, with a 95-pound Bernize

          8  Mountain Dog, a little Sheltie and a Corgie, that's

          9  almost impossible. Buildings that said they were

         10  totally pet-friendly and that they would accept

         11  these pets, I begged, because I don't believe what

         12  real estate people will tell me, I'm sorry to say

         13  that, I don't believe what managing agents will tell

         14  me. I believe, I stand in front of buildings, I do

         15  everything, it takes an enormous amount of work and

         16  I make sure that management agent goes to that board

         17  and asks them specifically what they will do before

         18  any contract or any kind of interest is made because

         19  of the disappointment for people.

         20                 And the people on the board then, as

         21  I just said, they may make decisions and say, no, we

         22  would never have a dog like that.

         23                 So, it's really individual.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MS. FRIEND: I would just like to add

          3  that both of our dogs were rescue animals.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

          5  you very much, both of you.

          6                 You may not have noticed but there is

          7  a lot of people piling up outside the door for the

          8  next hearing.

          9                 I'm going to read the names of folks

         10  that have signed in. All of the names I'm reading

         11  are people that are in favor of the legislation, but

         12  you will not be able to testify today. If you have

         13  written testimony, you can bring it up and we'll

         14  take it for the record.

         15                 Fern Wood Mitchell. Livi French.

         16  Clare Sanders. Lourdes Quinones. Jill Rajour. I'm

         17  not sure what it is. 145 East 27th Street. Warren

         18  Doyne. Eugenia Vagman. Phil Clarke. Patty and Tara

         19  Adjamine. Faith Elliot. Maureen Moore. Ella Oblas.

         20  Thank you all for coming.

         21                 Intro. 189 is laid over, and Intro.

         22  272 has -- 272-A has passed. Thank you. This hearing

         23  is adjourned.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 1:05 p.m.)
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